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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, DC 20549

FORM 10-Q

 x TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2014
OR

o QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from _______ to _______

Commission file number 000-50385
GrowLife, Inc. 

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware
(State or other jurisdiction of
incorporation or organization)

90-0821083
(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

20301 Ventura Blvd., Suite 126, Woodland Hills, CA  91364
(Address of principal executive offices and zip code)

(800) 977-5255
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes x  No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if
any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the
preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes x
No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,
or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting
company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer  o Accelerated filer 
o

Non-accelerated filer 
o

Smaller reporting
company  x
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).
Yes  o No x

As of May 14, 2014 there were 809,437,891 shares of the issuer’s common stock, $0.0001 par value per share,
outstanding.
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PART 1 - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. Financial Statements

GrowLife, Inc. and Subsidiaries (formerly Phototron Holdings, Inc.)
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets

March 31, 2014
December 31,

2013
(Unaudited)  (Audited)

ASSETS
Current Assets
   Cash $ 742,254 $ 1,831,276
   Restricted cash 46,400 46,400
   Accounts receivable, net 185,700 183,678
   Inventory, net 1,563,559 1,253,721
   Prepaid expenses 57,533 17,001
   Other receivable 2,497 3,666
   Deposits 51,764 46,173
Total current assets 2,649,707 3,381,915

Investment in related party 3,707,918 1,122,397
Property and equipment, net 47,852 53,758
Intangibles 433,663 460,300
Goodwill 739,000 739,000

Total Assets $ 7,578,140 $ 5,757,370

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT
Current liabilities
   Accounts payable $ 927,533 $ 1,095,204
   Accrued expenses 221,772 175,603
   Deferred revenue 13,275 30,888
   Derivative liability 28,428,574 9,324,000
   Related party note payable and accrued interest, net of debt discount 1,226 1,160
   Convertible notes payable and accrued interest, net of debt discount 682,962 -
Total current liabilities 30,275,342 10,626,855

Long-term debt - 974,479

Total liabilities 30,275,342 11,601,334

Stockholders' Deficit
   Common Stock, $0.0001 par value, 3,000,000,000
      shares authorized, 806,090,859 and 755,694,870
      shares issued and outstanding, respectively 80,611 75,571
   Additional paid-in-capital 35,690,082 17,359,932
   Unrealized gain on related party investment 3,706,758 1,121,237
   Accumulated deficit (62,174,653 ) (24,400,704)
   Total stockholders' deficit (22,697,202 ) (5,843,964 )
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Total liabilities and stockholders' deficit $ 7,578,140 $ 5,757,370

See accompanying notes to these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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GrowLife, Inc. and Subsidiaries (formerly Phototron Holdings, Inc.)
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations

(Unaudited)

For the Three Months Ended
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

Net revenue $ 2,382,836 $ 760,709

Cost of Goods Sold 1,862,958 511,583

Gross Profit 519,878 249,126

General and administrative 1,189,888 556,993
Shares issued for services rendered 1,645,000 179,125
Stock options expense 151,701 -

Loss from operations (2,466,711 ) (486,992 )

Other expense
     Change in fair value of derivative (34,507,607 ) (169,753 )
     Loss on extinguishment of debt - (2,750 )
     Interest expense, net (799,631 ) (523,467 )

Net loss $ (37,773,949 ) $ (1,182,962 )

Net loss per share - (basic and diluted) $ (0.05 ) $ (0.00 )

Weighted average shares outstanding - (basic and
diluted) 775,342,755 443,605,824

See accompanying notes to these condensed consolidated financial statements.

- 3 -
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GrowLife, Inc. and Subsidiaries (formerly Phototron Holdings, Inc.)
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Unaudited)

For the Three Months Ended
March 31,
2014

March 31,
2013

Operating activities
   Net loss $ (37,773,949 ) $ (1,182,962)
   Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used by
   operating activities
       Depreciation and amortization 9,831 2,843
       Amortization of intangible assets 26,637 27,249
       Stock options expense 151,701 -
       Common stock issued for services rendered 1,645,000 179,125
       Amortization of debt discount 758,348 495,038
       Change in fair value of derivative liability 34,507,607 169,753
       Loss on extinguishment of debt - 2,750
       Accrued interest on convertible notes payable 40,983 26,182
   Changes in operating assets and liabilities
       Accounts receivable (2,022 ) 10,580
       Inventory (309,838 ) 20,903
       Prepaid expenses (40,532 ) (10,952 )
       Other receivable 1,169 -
       Deposits (5,591 ) -
       Accounts payable (28,117 ) (76,976 )
       Accrued expenses (93,384 ) 31,390
       Deferred revenue (17,613 ) (13,137 )

Net cash used in operating activities (1,129,770 ) (318,214 )

Investing activities
   Cash paid for store improvements (3,925 ) -

Net cash used in investing activities (3,925 ) -

Financing activities
   Proceeds from the issuance of common stock - 534,760
   Proceeds from the issuance of 10% convertible note - 156,000
   Proceeds from options exercised 44,673 9,000
   Proceeds from notes payable, related party - 25,000
   Payments of notes payable and accrued interest - (196,508 )

Net cash provided by financing activities 44,673 528,252

Net increase (decrease) in cash (1,089,022 ) 210,038

Cash, beginning of period 1,831,276 36,602
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Cash, end of period $ 742,254 $ 246,640

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
   Cash paid for interest $ - $ 4,865

   Cash paid for income taxes $ - $ -

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
   Common stock issued for services rendered $ 1,645,000 $ 179,125
   6% Senior secured convertible notes converted into
       common stock, principal and interest $ 32,901 $ 485,275
   7% Convertible notes converted into
       common stock, principal and interest $ 618,192 $ -
   12% Senior secured convertible notes converted into
       common stock, principal and interest $ 439,688 $ -
   Notes payable for Greners acquisition converted into
       common stock, principal and interest $ - $ 156,000
    Derivative liability reclassified to additional paid-in-capital $  15,403,033 $  -
   Common stock issued for cashless exercise of options $ 278 $ 368
   Preferred stock cancelled $ - $ 300

See accompanying notes to these condensed consolidated financial statements.

- 4 -
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GROWLIFE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES (formerly Phototron Holdings, Inc.)
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Three-Months Ended March 31, 2014 (Unaudited)

NOTE 1 – DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND ORGANIZATION

GrowLife is a holding company with multiple operating businesses that manufacture and supply branded equipment
and expendables in the USA for urban gardening, inclusive of equipment and expendables for gardening of medical
marijuana. Wholly owned GrowLife companies include SG Technologies, Corp., Phototron, Inc., Business Bloom,
Inc. (dba Greners.com), Soja, Inc. (dba Urban Garden Supply), GrowLife Hydroponics, Inc., and GrowLife
Productions, Inc. In addition to the promotion and sales of GrowLife owned brands, GrowLife companies distribute
and sell over 3,000 products through its on-line distribution channel, Greners.com, our on-line superstore, and through
our seven retail storefronts. GrowLife’s www.cannabis.org is expected to provide GrowLife with another widely
recognized and authoritative channel for branded product promotion and sales. GrowLife and its business units are
organized and directed to operate strictly in accordance with all applicable state and federal laws. The following
organizational chart details our corporate structure:
GrowLife is actively engaged in improving and expanding its lineup of branded products through organic
development, business alliances and acquisition. Consistent with this strategy, GrowLife is actively engaged in
developing other business alliances and evaluating branded products for acquisition. GrowLife is also actively
engaged in building upon its direct to customers sales business by expansion and promotion of Greners.com,
StealthGrow.com, Phototron.com and other unique online channels of distribution. Finally, GrowLife is actively
engaged in pursuing acquisitions that will allow its GrowLife Hydroponics retail sales division business to expand
regionally in the United States.

- 5 -
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GrowLife companies manufacture and supply branded equipment and expendables, with expendables being products
such as nutrients and soils that are consumed as part of the cultivation process and therefore needing to be replenished
on a continual basis, that promote and enhance the characteristics of quality and quantity of indoor and outdoor urban
gardening. GrowLife also controls premier industry portal www.cannabis.org, which we believe will serve as another
widely recognized and authoritative social channel for branded product promotion, sales, and information as and to
the extent the regulatory landscape changes.

With regard to the products sold at our retail hydroponics stores in our business to business relationships, and directly,
the Company typically purchases its products from the actual manufacturer or a wholesale distributor and resells the
products. Most of our vendors provide payment terms ranging from seven (7) days to thirty (30) days while some
require payment at the time we purchase them. The Company also more directly manages supply chains in which
GrowLife company branded products are produced, principally under the Stealth Grow brand, or under a co-brand
shared by GrowLife, Stealth Grow, and the brands of our business to business partners. With regard to our Phototron
units, the Company purchases the required materials and then assembles the actual working unit at our Gardena,
California facility, with the finished, and working, Phototron unit then being shipped directly to our customers.

We have focused on the urban gardening industry in the United States and have targeted legal growers of medical
marijuana and general gardening enthusiasts. The majority of the products that we sell are primarily used in the
cultivation, in a legal and law abiding manner, of cannabis but can also be used to cultivate most any flowers and/or
vegetables. GrowLife and its business units are organized, and aim to operate, in accordance with applicable state and
federal laws. Accordingly, if and to the extent that state and federal laws permit the nationwide legal use of marijuana
and/or medical marijuana, we expect to commercialize our products in that market.

On June 7, 2013, GrowLife Hydroponics completed the purchase of Rocky Mountain Hydroponics, LLC, a Colorado
limited liability company (“RMC”), and Evergreen Garden Center, LLC, a Maine limited liability company (“EGC”). The
effective date of the RMH/EGC Agreement was June 7, 2013. The RMH/EGC Agreement included all of the assets
and liabilities of the RMH and EGC Companies, and in specific, their 4 retail hydroponics stores, which are located in
Vail and Boulder, Colorado, Peabody, Massachusetts, and Portland, Maine. Per the terms of the RMH/EGC
Agreement, GrowLife, Inc. paid the former owners of the RMH and EGC Companies $550,000 in cash, $800,000 in
12% Secured Convertible Notes, and $275,000 (7,857,141 shares at $0.035/share) in shares of GrowLife, Inc.’s
common stock.

On November 19, 2013, GrowLife, Inc. (the “Company”) entered into a Joint Venture Agreement (the “Agreement”) with
CANX USA LLC (“CANX”), a Nevada limited liability company.  Under the terms of the Agreement, the Company
and CANX will form Organic Growth International, LLC (“OGI”), a Nevada limited liability company, for the purpose
of expanding the Company’s operations in its current retail hydroponic businesses and in other synergistic business
verticals and facilitating additional funding for commercially financeable transactions of up to $40,000,000.  In
connection with closing of the Agreement, CANX will provide funding in the amount of $1,300,000 for a GrowLife
Infrastructure Funding Technology program transaction and will provide additional funding under a 7% Convertible
Note instrument. The Company will initially own a non-dilutive forty five percent (45%) share of OGI and the
Company may acquire a control share of OGI as provided in the Agreement. Please see “NOTE 4 - JOINT VENTURE
AGREEMENT WITH CANX USA, LLC” for a detailed description of this transaction.

From time to time, the Company may make modest investments in public or even privately held companies in our
industry segment in order to facilitate business opportunities of the Company.  The first such investment by the
Company occurred in May 2013, when the Company made an investment in the amount of $1,160 in Vape Holdings,
Inc. (“Vape”), a Nevada corporation.  Following a series of transactions that are detailed in “NOTE 9 – INVESTMENT IN
A RELATED PARTY”, Vape Holdings, Inc. became a public company.  Through its investment, GrowLife received
and still owns as of the time of this filing 200,428 shares in Vape Holdings, Inc. (OTCQB:  VAPE).
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From time to time, the Company may make modest investments in public or even privately held companies in our
industry segment in order to facilitate business opportunities of the Company.  The first such investment by the
Company occurred in May 2013, when the Company made an investment in the amount of $1,160 in Vape Holdings,
Inc. (“Vape”), a Nevada corporation.  Following a series of transactions that are detailed in “NOTE 9 – INVESTMENT IN
A RELATED PARTY”, Vape Holdings, Inc. became a public company.  Through its investment, GrowLife received
and still owns as of the time of this filing 200,428 shares in Vape Holdings, Inc. (OTCQB:  VAPE).

NOTE 2 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company. Intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated. The preparation of these condensed consolidated financial statements
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”).

The condensed consolidated financial statements of the Company and the accompanying notes included in this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are unaudited. In the opinion of management, all adjustments necessary for a fair
presentation of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been included. Such adjustments are of a
normal, recurring nature. The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, and the accompanying notes, are
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States ("GAAP") and do not
contain certain information included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2013. Therefore, the interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements should be read in
conjunction with that Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Going Concern

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the
Company will continue as a going concern. This basis of accounting contemplates the recovery of the Company’s
assets and the satisfaction of its liabilities. For the three month period ended March 31, 2014, the Company incurred a
net loss of $37,773,949 and cash used in operations was $1,129,770. The Company has experienced recurring
operating losses and negative operating cash flows since inception, and has financed its working capital requirements
during this period primarily through the recurring issuance of convertible notes payable and advances from a related
party. These facts indicate that there is substantial doubt of the Company’s continuation as a going concern.

Successful completion of the Company’s development programs and its transition to attaining profitable operations is
dependent upon obtaining additional financing. The Company does not have sufficient resources to fund its operations
for the next twelve months. Accordingly, the Company needs to raise additional funds in order to satisfy its future
working capital requirements, which it may not achieve on commercially reasonable terms.

Continued negative cash flows and lack of liquidity create significant uncertainty about the Company’s ability to fully
implement its operating plan, as a result of which the Company may have to reduce the scope of its planned
operations. If cash resources are insufficient to satisfy the Company’s liquidity requirements, the Company would be
required to scale back or discontinue its operations.

- 7 -
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Use of Estimates

In preparing these unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP,
management is required to make estimates and assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated financial statements and
the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Significant estimates and assumptions included in our condensed consolidated financial statements relate to
the valuation of long-lived assets, estimates of sales returns, inventory reserves and accruals for potential liabilities,
and valuation assumptions related to derivative liability, equity instruments and share based compensation.

Accounts Receivable and Revenue

Revenue is recognized on the sale of a product when the product is shipped, which is when the risk of loss transfers to
our customers, the fee is fixed and determinable, and collection of the sale is reasonably assured. A product is not
shipped without an order from the customer and the completion of credit acceptance procedures. The majority of our
sales are cash or credit card; however, we occasionally extend terms to our customers. Accounts receivable are
reviewed periodically for collectability.

Sales Returns

We allow customers to return defective products when they meet certain established criteria as outlined in our sales
terms and conditions. It is our practice to regularly review and revise, when deemed necessary, our estimates of sales
returns, which are based primarily on actual historical return rates. We record estimated sales returns as reductions to
sales, cost of sales, and accounts receivable and an increase to inventory. Returned products which are recorded as
inventory are valued based upon the amount we expect to realize upon its subsequent disposition. As of March 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013, there was no reserve for sales returns, which are minimal based upon our historical
experience.

Warranty Costs

Estimated future warranty obligations related to certain products are provided by charges to operations in the period in
which the related revenue is recognized. Estimates are based, in part, on historical experience. During the year ended
December 31, 2012 we negotiated a $46,000 credit with one of our vendors for future expected warranty repairs to
defective units. This amount was to be used to offset expected repairs in future periods. As of March 31, 2014, the
Company had utilized the entire $46,000 credit and had concluded its business relationship with this particular vendor.

- 8 -
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Shipping and Handling Fees and Cost

For the three month periods ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, shipping and handling fees billed to customers totaled
$60,005 and $60,116, respectively, and were included in revenue.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and are included in general and administrative expenses. For the three
month periods ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, advertising costs of $45,573 and $54,698, respectively, were included
in general and administrative expenses.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider cash equivalents with original maturities of 90 days or less to be cash equivalents. As of March 31, 2014
and December 31, 2013, we have no cash equivalents.

Equity Investments

We classify all highly-liquid investments with stated maturities of greater than three months from the date of purchase
and remaining maturities of less than one year as short-term investments. Investments with maturities beyond one year
may be classified as short-term based on their highly liquid nature and because such investments are viewed as being
available to support current operations. We classify and account for short-term investments as available-for-sale and
reflect realized gains and losses using the specific identification method. Changes in market value, if any, excluding
other-than-temporary impairments, are reflected under stockholders’ deficit as unrealized gain/loss on related party
investment.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

ASC Topic 820 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, establishes a three-level valuation
hierarchy for disclosure of fair value measurement and enhances disclosure requirements for fair value measurements.
The valuation hierarchy is based upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability as of the
measurement date. The three levels are defined as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active
markets.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets,
and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the
financial instrument.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.

The carrying value of cash, accounts receivable, investment in a related party, accounts payables, accrued expenses,
due to related party, notes payable, and convertible notes approximates their fair values due to their short-term
maturities.

Derivative financial instruments 
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The Company evaluates all of its financial instruments to determine if such instruments are derivatives or contain
features that qualify as embedded derivatives. For derivative financial instruments that are accounted for as liabilities,
the derivative instrument is initially recorded at its fair value and is then re-valued at each reporting date, with changes
in the fair value reported in the consolidated statements of operations. For stock-based derivative financial
instruments, the Company uses a weighted average Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model to value the
derivative instruments at inception and on subsequent valuation dates. The classification of derivative instruments,
including whether such instruments should be recorded as liabilities or as equity, is evaluated at the end of each
reporting period. Derivative instrument liabilities are classified in the balance sheet as current or non-current based on
whether or not net-cash settlement of the derivative instrument could be required within 12 months of the balance
sheet date.

During the three month period ending March 31, 2014, the Company had outstanding, at one time or another, six (6)
unsecured 7% convertible notes (see “NOTE 18 – 7% CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE”) that the Company
determined were a derivative liability due to the “reset” clause associated with the note’s conversion price. These notes
were originally issued, in the aggregate principal amount of $1,850,000, during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2013,
and as of December 31, 2013 the Company had valued the derivative liability of these notes, with outstanding
principal of $1,850,000 as of December 31, 2013, at $9,324,000 using the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing
model.

- 9 -
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During the three month period ending March 31, 2014, the Company had outstanding, at one time or another, six (6)
unsecured 7% convertible notes (see “NOTE 18 – 7% CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE”) that the Company
determined were a derivative liability due to the “reset” clause associated with the note’s conversion price. These notes
were originally issued, in the aggregate principal amount of $1,850,000, during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2013,
and as of December 31, 2013 the Company had valued the derivative liability of these notes, with outstanding
principal of $1,850,000 as of December 31, 2013, at $9,324,000 using the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing
model.

During the three month period ending March 31, 2014, three (3) Holders of these notes converted $600,000 of
principal and accrued and unpaid interest totaling $18,192 into 24,727,668 shares of the Company’s common stock at a
per share conversion price of $0.025. As of March 31, 2014, the outstanding principal on these notes totaled
$1,250,000 with accrued and unpaid interest totaling $27,807 (see “NOTE 18 – 7% CONVERTIBLE NOTES
PAYABLE”).

During the three month period ending March 31, 2014, the Company recalculated the value of the derivative liability
associated with these notes as of January 31, 2014, February 28, 2014, March 7, 2014 ($50,000 of principal converted
on this date), March 18, 2014 ($550,000 of principal converted on this date), and March 31, 2014 using the
Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model. As a result of these calculations, the Company recorded $34,507,607 of
non-cash “change in fair value of derivative” expense during the three month period ending March 31, 2014. As of
March 31, 2014, the Company had recorded a derivative liability in the amount of $28,428,574 in relation to the
$1,250,000 of outstanding principal related to these notes as of March 31, 2014.

See “NOTE 13 – DERIVATIVE LIABILITY” for a more detailed analysis of the Company’s derivative liability.

Loss Per Share

Basic loss per share is computed by dividing the net loss applicable to common stockholders by the weighted average
number of shares of common stock outstanding during the year. Diluted loss per share is computed by dividing the net
loss applicable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding plus the
number of additional common shares that would have been outstanding if all potentially dilutive common shares had
been issued, using the treasury stock method. Potentially dilutive common shares were excluded from the diluted loss
per share calculation because they were anti-dilutive.

As of March 31, 2014, there were 319,895,111 dilutive securities which are considered anti-dilutive and are not
included in diluted loss per share. The following details the dilutive securities as of March 31, 2014:

Options 34,000,000
Warrants 165,000,000
6% senior secured convertible notes - principal & interest 69,782,831
7% convertible notes - principal & interest 51,112,280

319,895,111

Stock Based Compensation

We periodically issue stock options and warrants to employees and non-employees in non-capital raising transactions
for services and for financing costs. We account for stock option and warrant grants issued and vesting to employees
based on Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) ASC Topic 718, “Compensation – Stock Compensation”,
whereas the award is measured at its fair value at the date of grant and is amortized ratably over the vesting period.
We account for stock option and warrant grants issued and vesting to non-employees in accordance with ASC Topic
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505, “Equity”, whereas the value of the stock compensation is based upon the measurement date as determined at either
(a) the date at which a performance commitment is reached, or (b) at the date at which the necessary performance to
earn the equity instruments is complete.
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Inventories

Inventories are recorded on a first in first out basis. Inventory consists of raw materials, purchased finished goods and
components held for resale. Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market. The reserve for inventory was $90,725
at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Assets acquired held under capital leases are initially recorded at the lower
of the present value of the minimum lease payments discounted at the implicit interest rate (35% for assets currently
held under capital lease) or the fair value of the asset. Major improvements and betterments are capitalized.
Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over an
estimated useful life of five years. Assets acquired under capital lease are depreciated over the lesser of the useful life
or the lease term. At the time of retirement or other disposition of property and equipment, the cost and accumulated
depreciation are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in the condensed consolidated
statements of operations.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Company evaluates the carrying value of goodwill, intangible assets, and long-lived assets during the fourth
quarter of each year and between annual evaluations if events occur or circumstances change that would more likely
than not reduce the fair value of the reporting unit below its carrying amount. Such circumstances could include, but
are not limited to (1) a significant adverse change in legal factors or in business climate, (2) unanticipated
competition, (3) an adverse action or assessment by a regulator, (4) continued losses from operations, (5) continued
negative cash flows from operations, and (6) the suspension of trading of the Company’s securities. When evaluating
whether goodwill is impaired, the Company compares the fair value of the reporting unit to which the goodwill is
assigned to the reporting unit’s carrying amount, including goodwill. The fair value of the reporting unit is estimated
using a combination of the income, or discounted cash flows, approach and the market approach, which utilizes
comparable companies’ data. If the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, then the amount of the
impairment loss must be measured. The impairment loss would be calculated by comparing the implied fair value of
reporting unit goodwill to its carrying amount. In calculating the implied fair value of reporting unit goodwill, the fair
value of the reporting unit is allocated to all of the other assets and liabilities of that unit based on their fair values.
The excess of the fair value of a reporting unit over the amount assigned to its other assets and liabilities is the implied
fair value of goodwill.

We amortize the cost of other intangible assets over their estimated useful lives, which range up to ten years, unless
such lives are deemed indefinite. Intangible assets with indefinite lives are tested in the fourth quarter of each fiscal
year for impairment, or more often if indicators warrant.

We recorded $26,637 and $27,249, of amortization charges related to other intangible assets for the three month
periods ending March 31, 2014 and March 31, 2013, respectively.

- 11 -
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Adopted

Effective January 2012, the Company adopted ASU No. 2011-04, Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRSs (ASU 2011-04). ASU 2011-04 represents the
converged guidance of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) on fair value measurement. A variety of measures are included in the update intended to either clarify
existing fair value measurement requirements, change particular principles requirements for measuring fair value or
for disclosing information about fair value measurements. For many of the requirements, the FASB does not intend to
change the application of existing requirements under Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 820, Fair
Value Measurements. ASU 2011-04 was effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011.
The adoption of this update did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In July, 2012, the FASB issued guidance on testing for indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment. The new
guidance allows an entity to simplify the testing for a drop in value of intangible assets such as trademarks, patents,
and distribution rights. The amended standard reduces the cost of accounting for indefinite-lived intangible assets,
especially in cases where the likelihood of impairment is low. The changes permit businesses and other organizations
to first use subjective criteria to determine if an intangible asset has lost value. The amendments to U.S. GAAP will be
effective for fiscal years starting after September 15, 2012. The adoption of this update did not have a material impact
on the consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

Effective January 2013, we adopted FASB ASU No. 2011-11, Balance Sheet (Topic 210):  Disclosures about
Offsetting Assets and Liabilities (ASU 2011-11).  The amendments in ASU 2011-11 require the disclosure of
information on offsetting and related arrangements for financial and derivative instruments to enable users of its
financial statements to understand the effect of those arrangements on its financial position.  Amendments under ASU
2011-11 will be applied retrospectively for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after
January 1, 2013.  The adoption of this update did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In April 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-07, Presentation of Financial Statements (Top 205): Liquidation Basis
of Accounting. The objective of ASU No. 2013-07 is to clarify when an entity should apply the liquidation basis of
accounting and to provide principles for the measurement of assets and liabilities under the liquidation basis of
accounting, as well as any required disclosures. The amendments in this standard is effective prospectively for entities
that determine liquidation is imminent during annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2013, and
interim reporting periods therein. The adoption of this update did not have a material impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Other recent pronouncements issued by FASB (including its Emerging Task Force), and the United States Securities
and Exchange Commission did not or are not believed by management to have a material impact on the Company’s
present or future consolidated financial statements.
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NOTE 3 – PURCHASE – ROCKY MOUNTAIN HYDROPONICS and EVERGREEN GARDEN CENTER

On June 7, 2013, GrowLife Hydroponics, Inc. completed the purchase of Rocky Mountain Hydroponics, LLC, a
Colorado limited liability company (“RMC”), and Evergreen Garden Center, LLC, a Maine limited liability company
(“EGC”). The effective date of the RMH/EGC Agreement was June 7, 2013. The RMH/EGC Agreement included all of
the assets and liabilities of the RMH and EGC Companies, and in specific, their 4 retail hydroponics stores, which are
located in Vail and Boulder, Colorado, Peabody, Massachusetts, and Portland, Maine. Per the terms of the RMH/EGC
Agreement, the Company paid the former owners of the RMH and EGC Companies $550,000 in cash, $800,000 in
12% Secured Convertible Notes, and $275,000 (7,857,141 shares at $0.035/share) in shares of the Company’s common
stock.

The Company has estimated that the fair value of the assets purchased to be $2,012,614. The purchase price has been
allocated to specific identifiable tangible and intangible assets at their fair value at the date of the purchase in
accordance with Accounting Standards Codification 805, “Business Combinations”, as follows:

Assets $907,614
Intangible assets 366,000
Goodwill 739,000
     Total 2,012,614
Less fair value of liabilities assumed (387,614 )
Purchase price $1,625,000

The Company will amortize the $366,000 of intangible assets at the rate of $6,100 per month over 5 years, with the
Company recording $18,300 of non-cash amortization expense related to these intangible assets during the three
month period ended March 31, 2014.

The following are unaudited pro-forma results of operations as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the
period for the three months ending March 31, 2013:

For the Three Months Ended
March 31,
2014

March 31,
2013

Net revenue $2,382,836 $1,800,015

Cost of Goods Sold 1,862,958 1,239,712

Gross Profit 519,878 560,303

General and administrative 1,189,888 817,796
Shares issued for services rendered 1,645,000 179,125
Stock options expense 151,701 -

Loss from operations (2,466,711 ) (436,618 )

Other income (expense)
     Change in fair value of derivative (34,507,607 ) (169,753 )
     Loss on extinguishment of debt - (2,750 )
     Other income - 524
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     Interest expense, net (799,631 ) (523,467 )

Net loss $(37,773,949 ) $(1,132,064 )

Net loss per share - (basic and diluted) $(0.05 ) $(0.00 )

Weighted average shares outstanding (2) - (basic and diluted) 775,342,755 451,462,965

- 13 -
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NOTE 4 – JOINT VENTURE AGREEMENT WITH CANX USA, LLC

On November 19, 2013, GrowLife, Inc. (the “Company”) entered into a Joint Venture Agreement (the “Agreement”) with
CANX USA LLC (“CANX”), a Nevada limited liability company. Under the terms of the Agreement, the Company and
CANX will form Organic Growth International, LLC (“OGI”), a Nevada limited liability company, for the purpose of
expanding the Company’s operations in its current retail hydroponic businesses and in other synergistic business
verticals and facilitating additional funding for commercially financeable transactions of up to $40,000,000. In
connection with the closing of the Agreement, CANX will provide funding in the amount of $1,300,000 for a
GrowLife Infrastructure Funding Technology program transaction and will provide additional funding under a 7%
Convertible Note instrument. The Company will initially own a non-dilutive forty five percent (45%) share of OGI
and the Company may acquire a controlling share of OGI as provided in the Agreement.

In accordance with the Agreement, the Company and CANX entered into a Warrant Agreement whereby the
Company delivered CANX 140,000,000 freely transferable, unrestricted warrants to purchase 140,000,000 shares of
the Company’s common stock, at a maximum strike price of $0.033 per share, par value $0.0001 share.

Subject to the terms of the Agreement, the Company may issue an additional 100,000,000 freely transferable,
unrestricted warrants to purchase 100,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, at
a maximum strike price of $0.033 per share and twenty (20) blocks of warrants in the Company, with each block
consisting of 10,000,000 freely transferable, unrestricted warrants to purchase 10,000,000 shares of the Company’s
common stock, at a maximum strike price of $0.033 per share, par value $0.0001.

In accordance with the Agreement, the Company also issued a 7% Note to CANX (the “Note”) in exchange for the
principal amount of $1,000,000.  Per the terms of the Note, the maturity date is September 30, 2015, and the annual
rate of interest is seven percent (7%), which increases to twenty-four percent (24%) per annum, or the maximum rate
permitted under any applicable law, in the event of default. Subject to certain limitations, CANX can, at its sole
discretion, convert the outstanding and unpaid principal and interest into fully paid and nonassessable shares of the
Company’s common stock. The conversion price for the period of time from the date of the Note through and
including September 30, 2014 is the lesser of (a) $0.025 per share and (b) seventy percent (70%) of the average of the
three (3) lowest daily volume weighted average closing prices occurring during the twenty (20) consecutive trading
days immediately preceding the applicable conversion date on which CANX elects to convert all or part of the Note,
subject to adjustment as provided in the Note. The conversion price is $0.025 per share for the period of October 1,
2014 through the maturity date of September 30, 2015, subject to adjustment as provided in the Note. The Company is
required to reserve, at all times, the full number of shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of all
outstanding amounts under this Note. At any time after the 12-month period immediately following the date of the
Note, the Company has the option to pre-pay the entire outstanding principal amount of the Note by paying to CANX
an amount equal to one hundred and fifty percent (150%) of the principal and interest then outstanding.  The
Company’s obligations under the Note will accelerate upon a bankruptcy event with respect to the Company or any
subsidiary, any default in the Company’s payment obligations under the Note, the Company’s failure to issue shares of
its common stock in connection with a conversion of any of the Note, the Company’s or any subsidiary’s breach of any
provision of any agreement providing for indebtedness of the Company or such subsidiary in an amount exceeding
$100,000, the common stock of the Company being suspended or delisted from trading on the Over the Counter
Bulletin Board (the “Primary Market”) market and the OTCQB, the Company losing its status as “DTC Eligible” or the
Company becoming late or delinquent in its filing requirements with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Upon
any such acceleration of the Note, the Company shall be obligated to pay an amount equal to the greater of (i) one
hundred and twenty percent (120%) of the outstanding principal of the Note (plus all accrued but unpaid interest) and
(ii) the product of (a) the highest closing price for the Company’s common stock for the five (5) days on which the
Primary Market is open for business immediately preceding such acceleration and (b) a fraction, the numerator of
which is the outstanding principal of the Note, and the denominator of which is the applicable conversion price as of
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In accordance with the Agreement, the Company also entered into a Registration Rights Agreement with CANX
whereby CANX has the right to demand that the Company prepare and file a Registration Statement on Form S-1 (or,
if Form S-1 is not then available to the Company, on such form of registration statement as is then available to effect a
registration for resale of securities) covering the resale of warrants issued pursuant to the Warrant Agreement.

Organic Growth International, LLC was incorporated on January 7, 2014 in the State of Nevada and had no business
activities during the three month period ended March 31, 2014.

  NOTE 5 – INTEREST PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH WISE PHOENIX, LLC AND AJOA HOLDINGS, LLC

On January 24, 2014, GrowLife, Inc. (the “Company”) executed an Interest Purchase Agreement (“IPA”) whereby Wise
Phoenix LLC, a Nevada limited liability company (“WP”), and AJOA Holdings, LLC, a Nevada limited liability
company (“AJOA”) (WP and AJOA may be collective referred to as “Sellers”), sold to Organic Growth International,
LLC, a Nevada limited liability company (“’OGI”), 25% of the fully diluted outstanding equity of CEN Biotech, Inc., a
corporation organized under the laws of Canada (“CEN”). OGI is the Company’s previously announced joint venture
with CANX USA, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company (“CANX”). The Company has a 45% ownership interest in
OGI and there are conditions under which it may gain a majority interest in the joint venture. The Company is
obligated to issue shares of common stock to the Sellers (see below). CEN, under the authority and inspection of the
Canadian authorities, has been authorized to build a medical marijuana growing facility in Canada, which could
produce as much as 1.3 million pounds of dried marijuana annually. CEN has not yet received approval to grow,
harvest, or sell medical marijuana.

In addition to the 25% equity interest in CEN, OGI is entitled to a preference should there be any Distributed Income
from the Company. Distributed Income is defined as CEN’s net income, after adding non-cash expenses less any
reserves designated by CEN’s Board of Directors. The reserves are not to exceed 20% of CEN’s gross revenues. Under
the terms of the IPA, Distributed Income is to be allocated 60% to OGI, 20% to AJOA, and 20% to WP until
distributions have been made equal to $40,000,000. After the distribution of $40,000,000, any Distributed Income is
to be allocated 40% to OGI, 30% to AJOA, and 30% to WP. It is the intention of the parties to the IPA that
distributions from available funds are to be made at least on an annual basis.

CEN’s obligations to OGI under the IPA are secured by all of CEN’s assets, excluding personal property and inventory
to be sold in the normal course of CEN’s business. OGI shall retain this security interest until such time as CEN has
distributed an amount equal to $40,000,000.
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In exchange for the rights discussed above, the Company is obligated to issue a total of 235,964,118 restricted shares
of its common stock (“Payment Shares”) ($40,000,000 calculated at $0.17 per share), should certain conditions be
satisfied. 117,647,059 of the Payment Shares will go to WP and the other 117,647,059 Payment Shares will go to
AJOA upon the satisfaction of the issuance conditions. In addition to certain document delivery requirements (e.g.,
financial statements and other corporate records), GrowLife will issue the Payment Shares only if it receives
documentary evidence that a Canadian government agency has by contract, license, or otherwise granted specific
rights to Sellers or CEN to grow, harvest, sell, import or export cannabis and cannabis bi-products in an amount not
less than 1.3 million pounds of dried cannabis annually. If CEN is granted the right to grow, harvest, and sell less than
1.3 million pounds, then OGI has the right to rescind the IPA or reduce the Payment Shares proportionately.

Finally, the Payment Shares, should they ever be issued, are subject to registration rights. The Company is obligated
to use its best efforts to register the Payment Shares as quickly as possible under applicable state and federal securities
laws.

It is especially important to note that OGI assigned all of its interests in and rights under the IPA to GrowLife under a
separate agreement. The details of this assignment are described under “Assignment” below.

CEN Biotech, Inc. Shareholder Agreement

On January 24, 2014, the Company entered into a Shareholder Agreement of CEN Biotech, Inc. (the “Shareholder
Agreement”). The Shareholder Agreement contemplated OGI’s assignment of the 25% equity interest in CEN to the
Company and therefore notes that the Company has a 25% interest. The Company, AJOA, WP, Creative Edge
Nutrition, Inc., and one individual, collectively representing 93% percent ownership of CEN, have signed the
Shareholder Agreement as of January 24, 2014, as well as CEN itself. Another eight individuals representing the
remaining 7% are expected to sign the Shareholder Agreement.

Under the Shareholder Agreement, WP, AJOA, and CANX each have the right to select one director to serve on CEN’s
Board of Directors. The Shareholder Agreement dictates that certain corporate actions cannot be taken without the
affirmative vote of each director (e.g., incurring indebtedness in excess of $500,000 for matters outside of the
then-current budget). Additionally, there shall be no new shareholders without the prior written consent of the CEN
Board of Directors. If the Company, or any other shareholder, wants to sell their interest in CEN, then the Company
must provide written notice of the terms and conditions of the proposed sale or transfer. This written notice must be
provided to the CEN Board of Directors, which shall have a right of first refusal to acquire the selling shareholder’s
interest. If sixty days pass and the CEN Board of Directors has not exercised their right, the selling shareholder may
consummate the noticed transaction.

Master Equipment, Procurement and Services Agreement

On January 24, 2014, OGI and CEN entered into a Master Equipment, Procurement, and Services Agreement (“MEPS”)
dictating that the legal cannabis growing equipment needs of CEN shall be supplied by the Company on a primary
basis, so long as specifications, price, and quality are substantially equal. This arrangement is required by the joint
venture agreement that created OGI, which mandates that OGI purchase all of its necessary goods and services from
the Company on an exclusive basis. Since it is a beneficiary, the Company executed the MEPS to signal its
acceptance.  In addition to functioning as a supplier, OGI was granted the global right to distribute all products and
services sold or licensed by CEN anywhere in the world. The MEPS shall remain in effect for so longer as OGI or the
Company is a CEN shareholder or five years, whichever is longer.
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It should be noted that OGI assigned all of its interests in and rights under the MEPS to GrowLife under a separate
agreement. The details of this assignment are described under “Assignment” below.

Profit Sharing Agreement

On January 24, 2014, WP, AJOA, OGI, and CEN entered into a Profit Sharing Agreement (“PSA”). Under the PSA,
OGI is entitled to 7.7% of all Payments received by CEN. Payments are defined as total gross payments (including
non-cash consideration), without setoff or deduction, paid directly or indirectly to CEN, its affiliates, or related
parties. CEN has agreed to pay OGI the 7.7% of Payments on a quarterly basis until the cessation of the Company,
subject to certain exceptions like mergers, acquisitions, and similar transactions. Lastly, when CEN’s cumulative
manufacturing and sales volume reaches 1 million pounds of cannabis, CEN is required to make a $100 million
distribution to OGI. It should be noted that OGI assigned all of its interests in and rights under the PSA to GrowLife
under a separate agreement. The details of this assignment are described under “Assignment” below.

Assignment

On January 28, 2014, OGI assigned to the Company all of OGI’s right, title, and interest in and to the IPA, the
Shareholder Agreement, MEPS, and PSA. The Company accepted this assignment along with all of its attendant rights
and obligations.

RXNB TRANSACTION

RXNB Interest Purchase Agreement

On January 24, 2014, OGI entered into a Master Equipment, Procurement and Services Agreement (“RXNB MEPS”)
with RXNB dictating that the legal cannabis growing needs of WP, AJOA, and RXNB shall generally be supplied by
the Company, so long as specification, price, and quality are substantially equal. This arrangement is required by the
joint venture agreement that created OGI, which mandates that OGI purchase all of its necessary goods and services
from the Company on an exclusive basis. Since it is a beneficiary, the Company executed the RXNB MEPS to signal
its acceptance. In addition to functioning as a supplier, OGI was granted the worldwide right to market and distribute
products sold or licensed by RXNB or its affiliates. The RXNB MEPS shall remain in effect for so long as OGI or the
Company are shareholders or five years, whichever is longer.

In addition to the 40% equity interest in RXNB, OGI is entitled to a preference should there be any Distributed
Income (defined in CEN Transaction IPA). Under the terms of the RXNB IPA, Distributed Income is to be allocated
60% to OGI, 20% to AJOA, and 20% to WP until distributions have been made equal to $45,000,000. After the
distribution of $45,000,000, any Distributed Income is to be allocated 40% to OGI, 30% to AJOA, and 30% to WP. It
is the intention of the parties to the RXNB IPA that distributions from available funds are to be made at least on an
annual basis.

RXNB’s obligations to OGI under the RXNB IPA are secured by all of RXNB’s assets, excluding personal property
and inventory to be sold in the normal course of RXNB’s business. OGI shall retain this security interest until such
time as RXNB has distributed an amount equal to $45,000,000.
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In exchange for the rights discussed above, the Company is obligated to issue a total of 264,705,882 restricted shares
of its common stock (“RXNB Payment Shares”) ($45,000,000 calculated at $0.17 per share). 132,352,941 of the RXNB
Payment Shares will go to WP and the other 132,352,941 Payment Shares will go to AJOA. In the RXNB IPA, OGI
guarantees that the Sellers will receive in the aggregate not less than $18,000,000 within nine months from January
24, 2014 or upon the Sellers’ liquidation of the RXNB Payment Shares, whichever is sooner. The RXNB Payment
Shares will be issued by the Company to WP and AJOA after OGI receives certain documentation from WP, AJOA,
and RXNB required by the RXNB IPA, including current and historical financial statements, insurance policy
information, and certificates of good standing. OGI has the right to rescind the transaction should the required
documents not be delivered within sixty business days. The RXNB Payment Shares will not be issued unless the
Company’s shareholders approve and increase in the Company’s authorized common stock at the February meeting of
shareholders.

Finally, the RXNB Payment Shares are subject to registration rights. The Company is obligated to use its best efforts
to register the Payment Shares as quickly as possible under applicable state and federal securities laws.

RXNB Shareholder Agreement

On January 24, 2014, OGI, the joint venture co-owned by the Company, entered into a Shareholder Agreement of
RXNB, Inc. (the “RXNB Shareholder Agreement”). AJOA and WP, the other two RXNB shareholders, along with
RXNB itself, were also parties to the RXNB Shareholder Agreement.

Under the RXNB Shareholder Agreement, AP, AJOA, and CANX, the other co-owner of OGI, each have the right to
select one director to serve on RXNB’s Board of Directors. Much like the CEN Shareholder Agreement, certain
corporate actions cannot be taken without the affirmative vote of each director (e.g., paying discretionary bonuses to
any officer or employee to the extent not included in the then-current budget). Additionally, there shall be no new
RXNB shareholders without the prior written consent of the RXNB Board of Directors. If OGI, or any other
shareholder, wants to sell their interest in RXNB, then OGI must provide written notice of the terms and conditions of
the proposed sale or transfer. This written notice must be provided to the RXNB Board of Directors, which shall have
a right of first refusal to acquire the selling shareholder’s interest. If sixty days pass and the RXNB Board of Directors
has not exercised their right, the selling shareholder may consummate the noticed transaction.

RXNB Master Equipment, Procurement and Services Agreement

On January 24, 2014, OGI entered into a Master Equipment, Procurement and Services Agreement (“RXNB MEPS”)
with RXNB dictating that the legal cannabis growing needs of WP, AJOA, and RXNB shall generally be supplied by
the Company, so long as specification, price, and quality are substantially equal. This arrangement is required by the
joint venture agreement that created OGI, which mandates that OGI purchase all of its necessary goods and services
from the Company on an exclusive basis. Since it is a beneficiary, the Company executed the RXNB MEPS to signal
its acceptance. In addition to functioning as a supplier, OGI was granted the worldwide right to market and distribute
products sold or licensed by RXNB or its affiliates. The RXNB MEPS shall remain in effect for so long as OGI or the
Company are shareholders or five years, whichever is longer.

- 18 -

Edgar Filing: GROWLIFE, INC. - Form 10-Q

27



RXNB Profit Sharing Agreement

On January 24, 2014, WP, AJOA, OGI, and RXNB entered into a Profit Sharing Agreement (“RXNB PSA”). Under the
RXNB PSA, OGI is entitled to 40% of all Payments (same definition used in CEN Transaction) made to RXNB
pursuant to RXNB’s 7% ownership of the gross licensing fees generated from a CEN license, or 2.8% of the total
licensing fees. RXNB has agreed to pay OGI on a yearly basis until the cessation of the Company, subject to certain
exceptions like mergers, acquisitions, and similar transactions.

Purchased Assets

In a January 24, 2014 document, the Sellers warranted that OGI shall receive a 40% interest in enumerated RXNB
assets. These assets include all real property, equipment, and fixtures of RXNB and its subsidiaries, which have an
approximate total value of $10,000,000. OGI will also receive a 40% ownership interest in all revenue streams and
intellectual property owned by RXNB. The Company, through its minority interest in OGI, will not control these
assets.

GENERAL NOTE ON RXNB TRANSACTION

OGI did NOT assign to the Company its interests under the various RXNB transaction documents. The Company does
have a 45% ownership interest in OGI and will experience the benefits through that ownership.

On March 20, 2014, Wise Phoenix, LLC (“WP”) and AJOA Holdings, LLC (“AJOA”), collectively referred to as the
“Sellers,” and R.X.N.B., Inc., a Nevada Corporation (“RXNB”) initiated a lawsuit against the Company and OGI, the
Company’s Joint Venture, in Clark County, Nevada in its Business Court division in regards to a Sellers Interest
Purchase Agreement (“RXNB Agreement”) with the Company and OGI.  The Sellers and RXNB claim that the
Company must effect registration of Company shares issuable to Seller in connection with the RXNB Agreement
since it had complied with the provisions set forth in the RXNB Agreement and delivered documents and instruments
to the Company.  The Company contends that the Sellers and RXNB have not met the requirements established by the
RXNB Agreement and therefore the Company is not obligated to register or issue the shares.

On March 24, 2014, Sellers, RXNB, OGI and the Company agreed to extend the closing date of the RXNB
Agreement to April 4, 2014. Additionally, Sellers and RXNB agreed to withdraw their lawsuit against the Company
and OGI without prejudice.

On April 10, 2014, the Company received notice from both R.X.N.B., Inc. and CEN Biotech, Inc. that both companies
were rescinding and/or voiding their respective Interest Purchase Agreements with the Company (see “NOTE 23 –
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS”). The notification indicated that both R.X.N.B., Inc. and CEN Biotech, Inc. were rescinding
and/or voiding their respective agreements when each company became aware that the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission suspended the Company’s trading in securities due to potential issues of accuracy and adequacy of
information in the marketplace.

NOTE 6 – G.I.F.T TRANSACTION WITH CMMS, INC.

On January 31, 2014, the Company signed its first GrowLife Infrastructure Financing Transaction (G.I.F.T.) with
CMMS, Inc. (“CMMS”), an Aspen, Colorado based medicinal cannabis company. Per the terms of the G.I.F.T.
agreement, the Company has agreed to finance $280,000 of equipment, to be purchased from the Company, over a
term of 5.5 years (66 months), with monthly payments in the amount of $6,878 beginning in month seven and ending
in month sixty-six. This G.I.F.T. agreement was personally guaranteed by the President of CMMS.
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NOTE 7 – SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

On February 7, 2014, GrowLife, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), held a Special Meeting of Shareholders
for the sole purpose of approving an amendment to the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation (the “Amendment”) to
increase the authorized shares of common stock of the Company (“Common Stock”) from 1,000,000,000 to
3,000,000,000 (the “Common Stock Proposal”). The Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) previously approved the
Common Stock Proposal effective December 9, 2013, subject to shareholder approval at the Special Meeting of
Shareholders. The Common Stock Proposal was approved by Shareholders representing approximately 68.5% of the
outstanding shares of the Company’s Common Stock voting at the meeting either in person or by proxy. A total of
573,878,915 votes were cast at the meeting either in person or by proxy which represents approximately 77.7% of the
issued and outstanding shares of the Company’s Common Stock. Of the votes cast at the meeting, 506,035,500 shares
voted in favor of the Common Stock Proposal (88.2% of shares voted) and 64,148,711 shares voted against (11.2% of
shares voted), with 3,694,704 shares abstaining (0.6% of shares voted). There were no broker non-votes. The
shareholder approval formally authorized the Company to file the Certificate of Amendment, which is effective as of
February 13, 2014.

NOTE 8 – INVENTORY

Inventory is comprised of the following:

As of
March 31,
2014

As of
December
31, 2013

(Unaudited)

Raw materials $88,102 $94,681
Finished goods 1,314,482 1,028,037
Inventory in transit 251,700 221,728
Inventory reserve (90,725 ) (90,725 )
   Total $1,563,559 $1,253,721
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Raw materials relate to inventory at the Company’s Phototron subsidiary, which purchases components from its
vendors and then assembles finished units that are shipped to its customers. Finished goods inventory relates to
product at the Company’s retail stores, which is product purchased from distributors, and in some cases directly from
the manufacturer, and resold at our stores. Inventory in transit relates to product purchased by the Company but which
had not been received as of March 31, 2014.

The Company reviews its inventory on a periodic basis to identify products that are slow moving and/or obsolete, and
if such products are identified, the Company records the appropriate inventory impairment charge at such time.

NOTE 9 – INVESTMENT IN A RELATED PARTY

In May 2013, the Company made an investment in the amount of $1,160 in Vape Holdings, Inc. (“Vape”), a Nevada
corporation.

Sterling Scott, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, has a personal investment in Vape as well. As of the time of
this filing, Mr. Scott holds 257,320 shares of Vape’s common stock. Furthermore, the former President of GrowLife,
Inc. is currently the Chief Executive Officer of Vape. As a result of Mr. Scott’s ownership of Vape common stock, the
Company has deemed Vape to be a related party and therefore has recorded its investment in Vape as an “Investment in
a related party” on its balance sheet.

The original cash investment of $1,160 resulted in the Company acquiring 29 units of an offering by Vape, with one
unit consisting of 500 shares of common stock in Vape and the assignment of $25 of convertible debt owed by
PeopleString Corporation (“People”), a publicly traded company, to a third party. In the aggregate, the Company
purchased 14,500 shares of the common stock of Vape and $725 of the assigned People debt, which accrues interest
and is convertible into shares of Vape’s common stock at a per share conversion price of $0.002.

Adjusting for the reverse stock split that was completed on January 8, 2014, the value of the Company’s investment in
Vape as of December 31, 2013 was $5.60 per share, or $1,122,397 (200,428 shares x $5.60 per share) in the
aggregate. As of March 31, 2014, the Company’s investment in Vape was valued at $3,707,918, which equates to
200,428 shares at a per share value of $18.50, which was the closing price of Vape’s common stock on March 31,
2014. The Company recorded the $2,585,521 gain in the value of its investment in Vape by debiting its “Investment in
a related party” balance sheet account while also recording a corresponding credit to “Unrealized gain on investment in a
related party” in the Stockholders’ deficit section of the Company’s balance sheet.

As of the time of this filing, the Company still owned 200,428 shares of Vape’s common stock.
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NOTE 10 – PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consists of the following as of:

March 31,
2014

December
31, 2013

(Unaudited)
Machines and equipment $63,172 $63,172
Furniture and fixtures 49,787 49,787
Computer equipment 52,304 52,304
Leasehold improvements 56,965 53,040
     Total property and equipment 222,228 218,303
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (174,376 ) (164,545 )
     Net property and equipment $47,852 $53,758

As a result of the Company’s acquisition of Rocky Mountain Hydroponics, LLC and Evergreen Garden Center, LLC
(“RMH/EGC”) (see “NOTE 3 – PURCHASE – ROCKY MOUNTAIN HYDROPONICS and EVERGREEN GARDEN
CENTER”), the Company acquired property and equipment totaling $109,318 in the aggregate. Subsequent to its
acquisition of RMH/EGC, the Company purchased an additional $5,500 of property and equipment related to its
RMH/EGC stores during the year ended December 31, 2013 and an additional $3,925 during the three month period
ended March 31, 2014. The Company has not purchased any property and equipment related to its non-RMH/EGC
business units since fiscal year 2012.

The following is a summary of the Company’s property and equipment transactions through March 31, 2014:

Net property and equipment as of December 31, 2013 $53,758

Property and equipment acquired during the three month period ended March 31, 2014 3,925
Depreciation and amortization expense during the three month period ended March 31, 2014 (9,831 )

     Net property and equipment as of March 31, 2014 $47,852
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NOTE 11 – INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As of December 31, 2013, the Company had recorded intangible assets totaling $874,600, which included $366,000 as
a result of its acquisition of Rocky Mountain Hydroponics, LLC and Evergreen Garden Center, LLC (“RMH/EGC”)
(see “NOTE 3 – PURCHASE – ROCKY MOUNTAIN HYDROPONICS and EVERGREEN GARDEN CENTER”). The
Company had also recorded $414,300 of accumulated amortization as of December 31, 2013 in relation to its
intangible assets, which resulted in a net book value of $460,300 as of December 31, 2013.

During the three month period ended March 31, 2014, the Company recorded $26,637 of non-cash amortization
expense related to its intangible assets. During the same period in fiscal year 2013, the Company recorded $27,249 of
non-cash amortization expense related to its intangible assets. The Company will continue to amortize its currently
recorded intangible assets at the rate of $8,879 per month, or $26,637 on a quarterly basis.

The following is a summary of the Company’s intangible assets as of March 31, 2014:

Intangible Assets:
Recorded
 Value

Accumulated
Amortization

Net Book
Value

   RMH/EGC acquisition $366,000 $ (61,000 ) $305,000
   Greners acquisition 230,000 (104,937 ) 125,063
   Phototron acquisition 215,000 (215,000 ) -
   Soja, Inc. (Urban Garden Supply) acquisition 60,000 (60,000 ) -
   Trademarks 3,600 - 3,600
Total intangible assets – March 31, 2014 $874,600 $ (440,937 ) $433,663

NOTE 12 – GOODWILL

As of March 31, 2014, the Company had recorded goodwill in the amount of $739,000, all of which was related to its
acquisition of Rocky Mountain Hydroponics, LLC and Evergreen Garden Center, LLC (“RMH/EGC”) (see “NOTE 3 –
PURCHASE – ROCKY MOUNTAIN HYDROPONICS and EVERGREEN GARDEN CENTER”). The Company
periodically evaluates its goodwill for impairment and, should it be determined that there is impairment, records the
appropriate non-cash impairment expense.

NOTE 13 – DERIVATIVE LIABILITY

In April 2008, the FASB issued a pronouncement that provides guidance on determining what types of instruments or
embedded features in an instrument held by a reporting entity can be considered indexed to its own stock for the
purpose of evaluating the first criteria of the scope exception in the pronouncement on accounting for derivatives. This
pronouncement was effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. The
adoption of these requirements can affect the accounting for warrants and many convertible instruments with
provisions that protect holders from a decline in the stock price (or “down-round” provisions). For example, warrants or
conversion features with such provisions are no longer recorded in equity. Down-round provisions reduce the exercise
price of a warrant or convertible instrument if a company either issues equity shares for a price that is lower than the
exercise price of those instruments or issues new warrants or convertible instruments that have a lower exercise price.
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As of December 31, 2013, the Company had recorded a derivative liability in the amount of $9,324,000 with relation
to the issuance of the Company’s 7% Convertible Notes (see “NOTE 18 – 7% CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE”) in
the original principal amount of $1,850,000 in the aggregate, all of which was still outstanding as of December 31,
2013.

On January 31, 2014, the Company recalculated the value of this derivative liability to be $21,477,631 using the
weighted-average Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model, which approximates the Monte Carlo and other
binomial valuation techniques, with the following assumptions; (i) dividend yield of 0%; (ii) expected volatility of
177%; (iii) risk free rate of 0.03%, (iv) stock price of $0.312, (v) per share conversion price of $0.025, and (vi)
expected term of 11 months, as the Company estimates that these notes will be converted by December 31, 2014. As a
result of this recalculation, the Company recorded a $12,153,631 non-cash “change in fair value of derivative” expense
while also increasing the value of the Company’s derivative liability by the same amount, which resulted in the
Company having a derivative liability in the amount of $21,477,631 as of January 31, 2014. Note that the outstanding
principal on these 7% convertible notes was $1,850,000 as of January 31, 2014.

On February 28, 2014, the Company again recalculated the value of its derivative liability using the weighted-average
Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model, which approximates the Monte Carlo and other binomial valuation
techniques, with the following assumptions; (i) dividend yield of 0%; (ii) expected volatility of 173%; (iii) risk free
rate of 0.04%, (iv) stock price of $0.367, (v) per share conversion price of $0.025, and (vi) expected term of 10
months, as the Company estimates that these notes will be converted by December 31, 2014. This resulted in a
derivative liability in the amount of $25,459,681, which represents an increase of $3,982,050 from the $21,477,631 as
of January 31, 2014. Accordingly, the Company recorded a $3,982,050 non-cash “change in fair value of derivative”
expense while also increasing the value of the Company’s derivative liability by the same amount, which resulted in
the Company having a derivative liability in the amount of $25,459,681 as of February 28, 2014. Note that the
outstanding principal on these 7% convertible notes was $1,850,000 as of February 28, 2014.

On March 7, 2014, one Holder of these 7% convertible notes converted $50,000 of principal into 2,000,000 shares of
the Company’s common stock at a per share conversion price of $0.025. The Company used the weighted-average
Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model to calculate the value of the related derivative liability at the time of
conversion using the following assumptions: (i) dividend yield of 0%; (ii) expected volatility of 180%; (iii) risk free
rate of 0.06%, (iv) stock price of $0.412, (v) per share conversion price of $0.025, and (vi) expected term of 1 month.
This resulted in a derivative liability of $773,002, which represents an $84,902 increase from the value as of February
28, 2014. As a result, the Company recorded an $84,902 non-cash “change in fair value of derivative” expense while
also recording a corresponding increase to the Company’s derivative liability. Upon conversion of the $50,000 of
principal by the Holder, the Company reclassified the $773,002 derivative liability related to the $50,000 conversion
from its “derivative liability” balance sheet account and into “additional paid-in capital”. After this $50,000 conversion,
the outstanding principal on these 7% convertible notes was $1,800,000.

On March 18, 2014, three (3) Holders of these 7% convertible notes converted $550,000 of principal into 22,000,000
shares of the Company’s common stock at a per share conversion price of $0.025. The Company used the
weighted-average Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model to calculate the value of the related derivative liability
at the time of conversion using the following assumptions: (i) dividend yield of 0%; (ii) expected volatility of 180%;
(iii) risk free rate of 0.07%, (iv) stock price of $0.69, (v) per share conversion price of $0.025, and (vi) expected term
of 1 month. This resulted in a derivative liability of $14,630,031, which represents a $7,060,940 increase from the
value as of February 28, 2014. As a result, the Company recorded a $7,060,940 non-cash “change in fair value of
derivative” expense while also recording a corresponding increase to the Company’s derivative liability. Upon
conversion of the $550,000 of principal by the Holders, the Company reclassified the $14,630,031 derivative liability
related to the $550,000 conversion from its “derivative liability” balance sheet account and into “additional paid-in
capital”. After this $550,000 conversion, the outstanding principal on these 7% convertible notes was $1,250,000.
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On March 31, 2014, the Company recalculated the value of its derivative liability related to the $1,250,000
outstanding principal balance of these 7% convertible notes using the weighted-average Black-Scholes-Merton option
pricing model, which approximates the Monte Carlo and other binomial valuation techniques, with the following
assumptions; (i) dividend yield of 0%; (ii) expected volatility of 180%; (iii) risk free rate of 0.03%, (iv) stock price of
$0.58, (v) per share conversion price of $0.025, and (vi) expected term of 9 months, as the Company estimates that
these notes will be converted by December 31, 2014. This resulted in a derivative liability in the amount of
$28,428,574, which represents an increase of $11,226,084 from the $17,202,490 as of February 28, 2014.
Accordingly, the Company recorded an $11,226,084 non-cash “change in fair value of derivative” expense while also
increasing the value of the Company’s derivative liability by the same amount, which resulted in the Company having
a derivative liability in the amount of $28,428,574 as of March 31, 2014. Note that the outstanding principal on these
7% convertible notes was $1,250,000 as of March 31, 2014.

For the three month period ended March 31, 2014, the Company recorded a $34,507,607 non-cash “change in fair
value of derivative” expense, all of which was related to its 7% convertible notes. The following is a summary of the
Company’s non-cash “change in fair value of derivative” expense:

Change in fair value of derivative liability as of January 31, 2014 $12,153,631
Change in fair value of derivative liability as of February 28, 2014 3,982,050
Change in fair value of derivative liability related to $50,000 principal conversion on March 7, 2014 84,902
Change in fair value of derivative liability related to $550,000 principal conversion on March 18, 2014 7,060,940
Change in fair value of derivative liability as of March 31, 2014 11,226,084

$34,507,607

NOTE 14 – RELATED PARTY NOTE PAYABLE AND ACCRUED INTEREST

In May 2013, the family of Sterling Scott, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, wired $1,160 on behalf of the
Company to Vape Holdings, Inc. (“Vape”) (see “NOTE 9 – INVESTMENT IN A RELATED PARTY”) in relation to the
purchase, by the Company, of shares of Vape’s common stock. As of December 31, 2013, the Company had recorded
the $1,160 as a note payable due to a related party. There is no formal note agreement between the Company and Mr.
Scott’s family, but both parties have agreed that the Company will pay Mr. Scott’s family interest at the rate of seven
percent (7%) per annum from the date the loan originated until it’s repaid.

During the three month period ended March 31, 2014, the Company recorded $66 of interest expense related to this
note, which represents interest expense from June 14, 2013 through March 31, 2014. As of March 31, 2014, the
Company owed the Scott family $1,226, of which $1,160 was principal and $66 was accrued and unpaid interest.
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NOTE 15 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

From time to time the Company’s Chief Executive Officer (CEO) has advanced various amounts to the Company. As
of December 31, 2011, the amount due the CEO was $183,103, and additional advances of $98,897 were made to the
Company through April 5, 2012. On April 5, 2012, the CEO converted $282,000 of these advances into a 6% senior
convertible note (see “NOTE 16 – 6% SENIOR SECURED CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE”). The CEO made
further advances during the year ended December 31, 2012 which were converted into a 6% senior convertible note.
As of December 31, 2012, total amount owed to the Company’s CEO was $429,111, which consisted of $413,680 in
principal and $15,431 in accrued and unpaid interest, all of which was owed via the 6% senior convertible note. The
Company’s CEO did not make any additional advances of any kind during the twelve month period ended December
31, 2013, nor did he convert any of his 6% senior convertible note during this period. During the three month period
ended March 31, 2014, the Company’s CEO did not advance the Company any additional funds nor did he convert any
portion of his convertible note. As of March 31, 2014, the outstanding principal balance on his 6% convertible note
was $413,680 with accrued and unpaid interest totaling $46,372. Per the terms of the 6% convertible note, the
principal and interest can be converted into shares of the Company’s common stock at a per share conversion price of
$0.007, which equates to 65,721,774 shares of the Company’s common stock as of March 31, 2014.

In May 2013, the family of Sterling Scott, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, wired $1,160 on behalf of the
Company to Vape Holdings, Inc. (“Vape”) (see “NOTE 9 – INVESTMENT IN A RELATED PARTY” and “NOTE 14 –
RELATED PARTY NOTE PAYABLE AND ACCRUED INTEREST”) in relation to the purchase, by the Company,
of shares of Vape’s common stock. As of December 31, 2013, the Company had recorded the $1,160 as a note payable
due to a related party. There is no formal note agreement between the Company and Mr. Scott’s family, but both
parties have agreed that the Company will pay Mr. Scott’s family interest at the rate of seven percent (7%) per annum
from the date the loan originated until it’s repaid. As of March 31, 2014, the Company owed the Scott family $1,226,
of which $1,160 is principal and $66 is accrued and unpaid interest.

On February 26, 2014, the Company engaged Jeff Giarraputo, who is currently a member of the Company’s Board of
Directors, as an advisor to the Company for six (6) months, effective as of February 15, 2014. The scope of the work
to be performed by Mr. Giarraputo is to provide marketing, business development, and general management to the
Company as related to the cannabis industry. As compensation for these services, the Company, pending approval by
its Board of Directors, will grant Mr. Giarraputo a stock option to purchase 2,000,000 shares of the Company’s
common stock at $0.31 per share, which represents the 30-day trailing average of the Company’s common stock. All
shares subject to the option will vest over a 6-month period beginning on the date of engagement (the “Vesting
Commencement Date”). One-sixth (1/6) of the shares will vest one month after the Vesting Commencement Date, and
thereafter 1/6th of the shares will vest each month on the same day of each month corresponding to the Vesting
Commencement Date until all shares have vested, provided that Mr. Giarraputo does not cease to be a consultant of
the Company prior to such date. The stock option grant shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the Company’s
2011 Stock Incentive Plan (“SIP”), including vesting requirements. No right to any stock is earned or accrued until such
time that the shares become vested, nor does the grant confer any right to continue vesting or employment. As of
March 31, 2014, the Company’s Board of Directors had not approved this stock option grant, therefore the Company
has not factored the 2,000,000 shares into any of the calculations related to this filing.
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NOTE 16 – 6% SENIOR SECURED CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

On September 28, 2012, the Company entered into an amendment and exchange agreement (“Exchange Agreement”)
with W-Net, Europa International, Inc., Sterling Scott, Robert Shapiro, Lauri Bilawa, Carla Badaracco and Forglen,
LLC (the “Investors”). The Exchange Agreement provided for the issuance of new 6% Senior Secured Convertible
Notes (the “6% Notes”) that replaced the 6% Senior Secured Convertible Notes that were previously issued during 2012.
The 6% Notes accrue interest at the rate of 6% per annum and have a maturity date of April 15, 2015. No cash
payments are required; however, accrued interest shall be due at maturity. In the event of a default the Investors may
declare the entire principal and accrued interest to be due and payable. Default interest will accrue at the rate of 12%
per annum. The 6% Notes are secured by substantially all of the assets of the Company and are convertible into
common stock at the rate of $0.007 per share. The Company has determined that the conversion feature is considered
a beneficial conversion feature and determined its value to be $102,096 as of December 31, 2013, which the Company
recorded as a debt discount to the 6% Notes. As of December 31, 2013 the Company owed principal of $468,680 and
accrued interest of $46,196 on these 6% Notes.

On January 3, 2014, a Holder of these 6% convertible notes converted their entire $30,000 of principal and $2,901 of
accrued and unpaid interest into 4,700,196 shares of the Company’s common stock at a per share conversion price of
$0.007. Upon conversion of the $30,000 of principal, the Company recorded $6,535 of non-cash interest expense to
fully amortize the remaining debt discount associated with the $30,000 of principal that was converted on January 3,
2014. After this conversion, this Holder had been paid in full by the Company.

During the three month period ended March 31, 2014, the Company did not borrow any additional funds related to
these 6% convertible notes nor did either of the two (2) remaining Holders, one of which is Sterling Scott, the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer, convert any of their principal and/or accrued and unpaid interest. For the three
month period ended March 31, 2014, the Company recorded $6,505 of interest expense related to these 6%
convertible notes while also recording $24,453 of non-cash interest expense related to the amortizing of its related
debt discount.

The following is a summary of the year-to-date 2014 transactions related to the Company’s 6% Notes:

Principal as of December 31, 2013 $468,680
Accrued and unpaid interest as of December 31, 2013 46,196
Debt discount (102,096 )
   Principal and accrued interest as of December 31, 2013, net of debt discount 412,780

Accrued and unpaid interest January - March 2014 6,505
Principal converted January - March 2014 (30,000 )
Interest converted January - March 2014 (2,901 )
Debt discount amortized January - March 2014 24,453
   Principal and accrued interest as of March 31, 2014, net of debt discount $410,837

On April 10, 2014, as a result of the suspension in the trading of the Company’s securities, the Company went into
default on these 6% senior secured convertible notes (see “NOTE 23 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS”). As a result, the
Company is now accruing interest on these notes at the applicable “default” rate of interest as stipulated in the note
agreements. Furthermore, as a result of being in default on these notes, the Holders can, at their sole discretion, call
these notes. Although no such action has been taken by the Holders at the time of this filing, the Company has
reclassified these notes as a current liability rather than long-term debt.
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NOTE 17 – 12% SENIOR SECURED CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

On June 7, 2013, in conjunction with its acquisition of Rocky Mountain Hydroponics and Evergreen Garden Center
(“RMH/EGC”) (see “NOTE 3 – PURCHASE – ROCKY MOUNTAIN HYDROPONICS and EVERGREEN GARDEN
CENTER”), the Company issued $800,000 of 12% Senior Secured Convertible Notes (the “12% Convertible Notes”) to
the former owners of RMH/EGC. These 12% Convertible Notes have a 2 year term, with the expiration date being
June 8, 2015. The 12% Convertible Notes are secured by substantially all of the Company’s assets, which include the
assets of all of the Company’s subsidiaries. Interest accrues daily on the outstanding principal amount at an annual rate
of 12 percent and begins accruing on the Original Issue Date (June 7, 2013). Interest is calculated on the basis of a
360-day year, consisting of 12 thirty (30) calendar day periods. The holders of the 12% Convertible Notes can, at their
sole discretion, convert any, or all, of the outstanding principal and accrued and unpaid interest into shares of the
Company’s common stock. The conversion price is set at $0.035 per share, which is subject to adjustment in the event
of any stock splits, stock dividends, and similar events. Per the terms of these 12% Convertible Notes, any conversion
by the holders must be for at least an amount equal to the greater of (a) $35,000 of the principal amount of these 12%
Convertible Notes and any accrued but unpaid interest thereon, and (b) 5,000,000 shares of common stock (such
number to be appropriately adjusted for any stock splits, stock dividends, and similar events). In the event of a default
by the Company, the outstanding principal amount of these 12% Convertible Notes, plus accrued but unpaid interest,
liquidated damages, and other amounts owing in respect thereof through the date of acceleration, shall become, at the
holder’s sole discretion, immediately due and payable in cash. In addition, in the event of a default, the rate of interest
will increase to 18% and will be calculated in the same manner described above.

At December 31, 2013, the outstanding principal balance on these 12% convertible notes was $408,000 with accrued
and unpaid interest totaling $27,608, for a total amount owed of $435,608. On the date these notes were issued, it was
determined that there was a beneficial conversion feature valued at $0.005 per share, or $114,285 in the aggregate,
which was recorded as a debt discount to these 12% convertible notes. At December 31, 2013, the unamortized debt
discount related to these 12% convertible notes was $41,825.

On January 31, 2014, the remaining $408,000 principal and $31,688 of accrued and unpaid interest were converted
into 12,562,518 shares of the Company’s common stock at a per share conversion price of $0.035 per share. Upon
conversion of the $439,688 of principal and accrued and unpaid interest, the Company had repaid this Holder, who
was Rob Hunt, a member of the Company’s Board of Directors, the President of GrowLife Hydroponics, Inc., and a
former owner of Rocky Mountain Hydroponics, LLC and Evergreen Garden Center, LLC, in full.

During the three month period ended March 31, 2014, the Company recorded $4,080 of interest expense in relation to
these 12% convertible notes and $41,825 of non-cash interest expense related to the amortization of the $41,285 of
debt discount that was outstanding as of December 31, 2013. As of March 31, 2014, these 12% convertible notes had
been satisfied in full and all related debt discount had been fully amortized as non-cash interest expense.
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NOTE 18 – 7% CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

On October 11, 2013, the Company issued 7% Convertible Notes (the “7% Notes”) to four (4) Holders in the aggregate
amount of $850,000. Per the terms of the 7% Note, the original principal balance is $850,000 and is not secured by
any collateral or any assets pledged to the Holder. The maturity date is September 30, 2015, and the annual rate of
interest is seven percent (7%), which increases to twenty-four percent (24%) per annum, or the maximum rate
permitted under any applicable law, in the event of default.  Subject to certain limitations, the Holder can, at its sole
discretion, convert the outstanding and unpaid principal and interest into fully paid and nonassessable shares of the
Company’s common stock. The conversion price for the period of time from the date of this 7% Note through and
including September 30, 2014 is the lesser of (a) $0.025 per share and (b) seventy percent (70%) of the average of the
three (3) lowest daily volume weighted average closing prices occurring during the twenty (20) consecutive trading
days immediately preceding the applicable conversion date on which the Holder elects to convert all or part of this 7%
Note, subject to adjustment as provided in this 7% Note. The conversion price is $0.025 per share for the period of
October 1, 2014 through the maturity date of September 30, 2015, subject to adjustment as provided in this 7% Note.
At any time after the 12-month period immediately following the date of this 7% Note, the Company has the option to
pre-pay the entire outstanding principal amount of this 7% Note by paying to the Holder an amount equal to one
hundred and fifty percent (150%) of the principal and interest then outstanding. The Company’s obligations under this
7% Note will accelerate upon a bankruptcy event with respect to the Company or any subsidiary, any default in the
Company’s payment obligations under this 7% Note, the Company’s failure to issue shares of its common stock in
connection with a conversion of this 7% Note, the Company’s or any subsidiary’s breach of any provision of any
agreement providing for indebtedness of the Company or such subsidiary in an amount exceeding $100,000, the
common stock of the Company being suspended or delisted from trading on the Over the Counter Bulletin Board (the
“Primary Market”) market and the OTCQB, the Company losing its status as “DTC Eligible” or the Company becoming
late or delinquent in its filing requirements with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Upon any such
acceleration of this 7% Note, the Company shall be obligated to pay an amount equal to the greater of (i) one hundred
and twenty percent (120%) of the outstanding principal of this 7% Note (plus all accrued but unpaid interest) and (ii)
the product of (a) the highest closing price for the Company’s common stock for the five (5) days on which the
Primary Market is open for business immediately preceding such acceleration and (b) a fraction, the numerator of
which is the outstanding principal of this 7% Note, and the denominator of which is the applicable conversion price as
of the date of determination.

Due to the “reset” clause in these 7% Notes relating to the conversion price, the Company has determined that the
conversion feature is considered a beneficial conversion feature and thereby creates a derivative liability (see “NOTE
13 – DERIVATIVE LIABILITY”) for the Company. On the date of issuance of the $850,000 of 7% convertible notes,
the Company calculated the value of the derivative liability using the weighted-average Black-Scholes-Merton option
pricing model, which approximates the Monte Carlo and other binomial valuation techniques, with the following
assumptions; (i) dividend yield of 0%; (ii) expected volatility of 25.09%; (iii) risk free rate of 0.23%, (iv) expected
term of 1 year, (v) market value share price of $0.063, and (vi) per share conversion price of $0.025. Based upon this
model, the Company determined an initial derivative liability value of $1,292,000, which it recorded as a derivative
liability as of the date of issuance while also recording a $442,000 non-cash interest expense and an $850,000 debt
discount on its balance sheet in relation to the bifurcation of the embedded conversion options  of these notes.
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On December 20, 2013, the Company issued an additional $1,000,000 of 7% convertible notes to two Holders. As
previously stated, due to the “reset” clause in these 7% Notes relating to the conversion price, the Company has
determined that the conversion feature is considered a beneficial conversion feature and thereby creates a derivative
liability (see “NOTE 13 – DERIVATIVE LIABILITY”) for the Company. On the date of issuance of the $1,000,000 of
7% convertible notes, the Company calculated the value of the derivative liability using the weighted-average
Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model, which approximates the Monte Carlo and other binomial valuation
techniques, with the following assumptions; (i) dividend yield of 0%; (ii) expected volatility of 45.04%; (iii) risk free
rate of 0.02%, (iv) expected term of 1 year, (v) market value share price of $0.14, and (vi) per share conversion price
of $0.025. Based upon this model, the Company determined an initial derivative liability value of $4,600,000, which it
recorded as a derivative liability as of the date of issuance while also recording a $3,600,000 non-cash interest expense
and an $1,000,000 debt discount on its balance sheet in relation to the bifurcation of the embedded conversion
options  of these notes.

At December 31, 2013, the outstanding principal balance on these 7% convertible notes was $1,850,000, the accrued
and unpaid interest totaled $15,668, and the related debt discount totaled $1,698,292, for a net value of $167,376.

On March 7, 2014, one Holder of these 7% convertible notes converted $50,000 of principal into 2,000,000 shares of
the Company’s common stock at a per share conversion price of $0.025. Upon the conversion of the $50,000, the
Company recorded $39,583 of non-cash interest expense to fully amortize the remaining portion of the debt discount
related to the $50,000 of principal.

On March 18, 2014, three (3) Holders of these 7% convertible notes converted $550,000 of principal and $18,192 of
accrued and unpaid interest into 22,727,668 shares of the Company’s common stock at a per share conversion price of
$0.025. Upon the conversion of the $550,000, the Company recorded $435,412 of non-cash interest expense to fully
amortize the remaining portion of the debt discount related to the $550,000 of principal.

During the three month period ended March 31, 2014, the Company recorded interest expense of $30,330 in relation
to these 7% Notes and $692,608 of non-cash interest expense related to the amortization of the debt discount
associated with these 7% convertible notes. As of March 31, 2014, the outstanding principal on these 7% convertible
notes was $1,250,000, accrued and unpaid interest was $27,807, and unamortized debt discount was $1,005,685,
which results in a net amount of $272,125.

On April 10, 2014, as a result of the suspension in the trading of the Company’s securities, the Company went into
default on these 7% convertible notes (see “NOTE 23 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS”). As a result, the Company is now
accruing interest on these notes at the applicable “default” rate of interest as stipulated in the note agreements.
Furthermore, as a result of being in default on these notes, the Holders can, at their sole discretion, call these notes.
Although no such action has been taken by the Holders at the time of this filing, the Company has reclassified these
notes as a current liability rather than long-term debt.
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NOTE 19 – CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

The following table summarizes the Company’s long-term convertible notes payable as of March 31, 2014:

Principal
Accrued
Interest

Debt
Discount

As of
March 31,
2014

6% Senior secured convertible notes $438,680 $49,800 $(77,643 ) $410,837
7% Senior secured convertible note ($850,000) 250,000 8,244 (187,497 ) 70,747
7% Senior secured convertible note ($1,000,000) 1,000,000 19,563 (818,185 ) 201,378

$1,688,680 $77,607 $(1,083,325) $682,962

NOTE 20 – STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT

Common Stock

During the three month period ended March 31, 2014, the Company issued 50,395,989 shares of its common stock,
valued at $2,780,454, as detailed below:

Shares Value
Conversion of principal and interest - 6% convertible notes 4,700,196 $ 32,901
Conversion of principal and interest - 7% convertible notes 24,727,668 618,192
Conversion of principal and interest - 12% convertible notes 12,562,518 439,688
Shares issued for services rendered 1,279,420 485,000
Shares issued for Board compensation 2,000,000 1,160,000
Options exercised for cash 2,351,187 44,673
Options exercised on a cashless basis 2,775,000 -

50,395,989 $ 2,780,454

On January 3, 2014, the Company issued 4,700,196 shares of its common stock to one (1) Holder of its 6% senior
secured convertible notes payable (see “NOTE 16 – 6% SENIOR SECURED CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE”)
upon the conversion of $30,000 of principal and $2,901 of accrued and unpaid interest at a per share conversion price
of $0.007. Upon conversion this Holder’s note was satisfied in full.

On January 31, 2014, the Company issued 12,562,518 shares of its common stock to Rob Hunt, a member of the
Company’s Board of Directors, President of GrowLife Hydroponics, Inc., a former owner of Rocky Mountain
Hydroponics, LLC and Evergreen Garden Center, LLC, and the last Holder of the Company’s 12% Senior Secured
Convertible Notes Payable (see “NOTE 17 – 12% SENIOR SECURED CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE”). The
shares were issued upon the conversion of $408,000 of principal and $31,688 of accrued and unpaid interest at a per
share conversion price of $0.035. Upon conversion Mr. Hunt’s note was satisfied in full.
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On January 31, 2014, the Company issued 2,351,187 shares of its common stock for cash proceeds of $44,673. The
shares were issued upon the exercise of a stock option granted in fiscal year 2011, with the Holder entitled to purchase
2,351,187 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $0.019 per share with proceeds totaling
$44,673.

On February 13, 2014, the Company issued 29,420 shares of its common stock to a third party consultant as payment
in full for services rendered. The shares were priced at $0.3399 per share, which was the average closing price of the
Company’s common stock during the ten (10) trading days prior to February 13, 2014, which was the date of the
agreement.

On February 16, 2014, the Company issued 1,250,000 shares of its common stock to Integrity Media, Inc. (“Integrity”)
and valued these shares at a per share price of $0.38, which was the closing price of the Company’s common stock on
February 14, 2014, the last trading day prior to issuance. The shares were the second installment owed to Integrity per
the terms of its November 16, 2013 agreement with the Company. Upon the issuance of these shares, the Company
owes Integrity an additional 1,500,000 shares of its common stock.

On March 7, 2014, the Company issued 2,000,000 shares of its common stock to one (1) Holder of the Company’s 7%
convertible notes payable (see “NOTE 18 – 7% CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE”) upon the conversion of $50,000
of principal at a per share conversion price of $0.025.

On March 18, 2014, the Company issued 22,727,668 shares of its common stock to three (3) Holders of the Company’s
7% convertible notes payable (see “NOTE 18 – 7% CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE”) upon the conversion of
$550,000 of principal and $18,192 of accrued and unpaid interest at a per share conversion price of $0.025. Upon
conversion the notes of these three Holders had been satisfied in full.

On March 20, 2014, the Holder of a stock option granted in fiscal year 2011 to purchase 4,500,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock at $0.23 per share exercised his option on a cashless basis. Per the terms of the Stock
Option Agreement, the net shares issued to the Holder were 2,775,000.

On March 31, 2014, the Company issued 500,000 shares to each of its four (4) independent Board Directors,
2,000,000 shares in the aggregate, pursuant to the Company’s Board grant in August 2012. Per the terms of the August
2012 Board grant, each independent Director is to receive 500,000 with the Company valuing those shares at $0.02
per share, which was the closing price of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant. Upon the issuance of
these shares on March 31, 2014, the Company valued the shares at $0.58 per share, which was the closing price of the
Company’s common stock on March 31, 2014. The Company valued them at $0.58 per share rather than $0.02 per
share due to the age of the original Board grant, which the Company’s Board of Directors viewed as outdated and in
need of review. On April 25, 2014, the four (4) independent Board Directors entered into four (4) separate Restricted
Stock Cancellation Agreements that effectively cancelled the issuance of the 500,000 shares of the Company’s
common stock that each received as compensation for Board service for the three month period ended March 31, 2014
and returned their shares to the Company (see “NOTE 23 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS”).

Preferred Stock

On March 19, 2013, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, the Company cancelled all of the
3,000,000 shares of its Series A Preferred Stock that were issued and outstanding. Per the terms of the Merger
Agreement, the Company was required to attain specified net revenue and gross profit milestones by May 1, 2013 in
order for the shares to vest and be distributed to the former shareholders of SGT. On March 19, 2013, applicable
parties agreed that the milestones would not be met so the Series A Preferred Stock was returned to the Company and
subsequently cancelled.

Edgar Filing: GROWLIFE, INC. - Form 10-Q

44



- 32 -

Edgar Filing: GROWLIFE, INC. - Form 10-Q

45



Stock options

In fiscal year 2011, the Company authorized a Stock Incentive Plan (“2011 Stock Incentive Plan”) whereby a maximum
of 18,870,184 shares of the Company’s common stock could be granted in the form of Non-Qualified Stock Options,
Incentive Stock Options, Stock Appreciation Rights, Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units, and Other Stock-Based
Awards. On April 18, 2013, the Company’s Board of Directors voted to increase to 35,000,000 the maximum
allowable shares of the Company’s common stock allocated to the 2011 Stock Incentive Plan. As of this filing, the
Company has outstanding unexercised stock option grants totaling 34,000,000 shares and has had an additional
22,076,809 shares exercised via previously granted stock options.

On April 5, 2012, the date of the Merger, Phototron had certain stock options outstanding that had been granted to its
employees, officers and directors. The terms of these stock options remained unchanged as a result of the Merger.

In November 2013, the Company’s Board of Directors granted Sterling Scott, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer,
a stock option via the Company’s 2011 Stock Incentive Plan to purchase 12,000,000 shares of the Company’s common
stock at an exercise price of $0.085 per share, which represents the fair value of one share of the Company’s common
stock on the date of grant. Per the terms of the stock option agreement, the shares were to vest in twenty-four (24)
equal monthly installments on the last day of each month commencing from and after October 31, 2013, they could be
exercised at any time on or after the grant date, the term was ten years, and the options could be exercised on a
cashless basis. The Company valued the options at $537,600 using the Black-Scholes option pricing model using the
following assumptions: (i) dividend yield of 0%; (ii) expected volatility of 82.77%; (iii) risk free rate of 0.02%, (iv)
expected term of 3 years, and a per share market price of $0.085, which was the closing price of the Company’s shares
on November 1, 2013. Beginning in November 2013 and ending October 2015, the Company will expense the
$537,600 at the rate of $22,400 per month over the 24-month vesting term of the option.

In November 2013, the Company’s Board of Directors granted John Genesi, the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, a
stock option via the Company’s 2011 Stock Incentive Plan to purchase 10,000,000 shares of the Company’s common
stock at an exercise price of $0.085 per share, which represents the fair value of one share of the Company’s common
stock on the date of grant. Per the terms of the stock option agreement, the shares were to vest in twenty-four (24)
equal monthly installments on the last day of each month commencing from and after October 31, 2013, they could be
exercised at any time on or after the grant date, the term was ten years, and the options could be exercised on a
cashless basis. The Company valued the options at $448,000 using the Black-Scholes option pricing model using the
following assumptions: (i) dividend yield of 0%; (ii) expected volatility of 82.77%; (iii) risk free rate of 0.02%, (iv)
expected term of 3 years, and a per share market price of $0.085, which was the closing price of the Company’s shares
on November 1, 2013. Beginning in November 2013 and ending October 2015, the Company will expense the
$448,000 at the rate of $18,667 per month over the 24-month vesting term of the option.

In November 2013, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a stock option grant to Rob Hunt, a Director and
President of GrowLife Hydroponics, Inc., via the Company’s 2011 Stock Incentive Plan to purchase 12,000,000 shares
of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $0.043 per share, which represents the fair value of one share
of the Company’s common stock on June 7, 2013. The option grant was made retro-active to June 8, 2013, the date on
which Mr. Hunt became a Director of the Company and the President of GrowLife Hydroponics, Inc. Per the terms of
the stock option agreement, the shares were to vest in twenty-four (24) equal monthly installments on the last day of
each month commencing from and after June 7, 2013, they could be exercised at any time on or after the grant date,
the term was ten years, and the options could be exercised on a cashless basis. The Company valued the options at
$228,000 using the Black-Scholes option pricing model using the following assumptions: (i) dividend yield of 0%; (ii)
expected volatility of 82.77%; (iii) risk free rate of 0.04%, (iv) expected term of 2 years, and a per share market price
of $0.043, which was the closing price of the Company’s shares on June 7, 2013. Beginning in June 2013 and ending
May 2015, the Company will expense the $228,000 at the rate of $9,500 per month over the 24-month vesting term of
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The above mentioned stock option grants were recorded in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) ASC Topic 718, “Compensation – Stock Compensation”. The Company measured, and recorded, the fair value
of the option grant as of the date of grant and is amortizing the computed value of the option grant over the related
vesting period.

On January 31, 2014, the Holder of a stock option granted during fiscal year 2011 exercised his option to purchase
2,351,187 shares of the Company’s common stock at a per share exercise price of $0.019 per share, which generated
cash proceeds of $44,673 for the Company.

On March 20, 2014, the Holder of a stock option granted in fiscal year 2011 to purchase 4,500,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock at $0.23 per share exercised his option on a cashless basis. Per the terms of the Stock
Option Agreement, the net number of shares of the Company’s common stock issued to the Holder was 2,775,000.

During the three month period ended March 31, 2014, the Company recorded $151,701 of non-cash “stock options
expense” related to the options issued/granted in November 2013. There was no such expense in the same period
during fiscal year 2013.

The following is a summary of the Company’s outstanding stock options as of March 31, 2014:

Options

Weighted
Average
Price

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual

Term

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

Outstanding December 31, 2012 12,851,187 $0.090 8.2 $-
   Exercised (6,000,000 ) - - -
   Issued 34,000,000 $0.070 - -
Outstanding December 31, 2013 40,851,187 $0.085 9.1 $1,064,967
   Exercised (6,851,187 ) $0.158
Outstanding March 31, 2014 34,000,000 $0.070 9.4 $913,267

Warrants

On May 1, 2013, the Company issued warrants to Gemini Master Fund (“GMF”) entitling GMF to purchase, at their
discretion, 5,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. The warrants had a five-year term with an original
exercise price of $0.05 per share. The warrants vested immediately and were exercisable in whole, or in part, at any
time and from time to time on or after the issue date and on or before the termination date. Per the terms of the
Common Stock Purchase Warrant (the “Warrant Agreement”) between the Company and GMF, the exercise price was
reset on June 4, 2013 to $0.035 per share due to the Company’s sale/issuance of shares at $0.035 per share under its
Subscription Agreement. On September 5, 2013, the exercise price was reset again to $0.02156 per share as a result of
the Company issuing shares of its common stock at said per share price in relation to a debt conversion related to the
Company’s 7% Convertible Notes (see ”NOTE 18 – 7% CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE”). On October 11, 2013,
Gemini Master Fund exercised the 5,000,000 warrants via a cashless exercise.
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On November 19, 2013, the Company issued 140,000,000 warrants to CANX USA, LLC (“CANX”) (see “NOTE 4 –
JOINT VENTURE AGREEMENT WITH CANX USA, LLC”) in accordance with the Joint Venture Agreement
between the Company and CANX. The warrants have a five-year term with an original exercise price of $0.033 per
share. The warrants vest immediately and are exercisable in whole, or in part, at any time and from time to time on or
after the issue date and on or before the termination date. The Company valued the warrants at the time of issuance
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model using the following assumptions: (i) dividend yield of 0%; (ii) expected
volatility of 24.82%; (iii) risk free rate of 0.05% and (iv) expected term of 1 year, which resulted in a value of
$5,040,000. The Company expensed the entire $5,040,000 at the time of issuance because the warrants vested
immediately and were also exercisable immediately. As of this filing CANX had not exercised any of its warrants.

On December 11, 2013, the Company issued 25,000,000 warrants to Hegyi, LLC (“Hegyi”), an entity controlled by
Marco Hegyi, who was hired as President of the Company in December 2013. The warrants have a ten-year term with
an original exercise price of $0.08 per share. The warrants vest immediately and are exercisable in whole, or in part, at
any time and from time to time on or after the issue date and on or before the termination date. The Company valued
the warrants at the time of issuance using the Black-Scholes option pricing model using the following assumptions: (i)
dividend yield of 0%; (ii) expected volatility of 88.81%; (iii) risk free rate of 0.02% and (iv) expected term of 3 years,
which resulted in a value of $1,725,000. The Company expensed the entire $1,725,000 at the time of issuance because
the warrants vested immediately and were also exercisable immediately. As of this filing Hegyi had not exercised any
of its warrants.

The table below summarizes the Company’s warrant activity during the three month period ended March 31, 2014:

Warrants

Weighted
Average
Price

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual

Term

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

Outstanding December 31, 2012 - $- - $-
   Issued 170,000,000 0.04 - -
   Exercised (5,000,000 ) 0.02 - -
Outstanding December 31, 2013 165,000,000 $0.04 5.6 $-
   Issued - - - -
   Exercised - - - -
Outstanding March 31, 2014 165,000,000 $0.04 5.3 $-
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NOTE 21 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operating Leases

In May 2011, we entered into a lease for our Phototron business unit to rent a warehouse facility in Gardena,
California. The terms of the lease provide for monthly rental expense of $4,065 with annual rent increases through the
expiration of the lease on May 31, 2014. During the last twelve months of the lease the monthly rent is $4,313. As of
this filing, the Company has negotiated a six (6) month extension on this lease whereby the monthly rent for the 6
additional months would be $4,442. As of this filing the Company has not yet signed the extension.

On May 30, 2013, the Company entered into a lease to rent retail space in Woodland Hills, California for its Urban
Garden Supply (Soja, Inc.) hydroponics store. The term is for ninety days and can be renewed, or terminated, by either
party with ninety days written notice. The monthly rent is $3,257. The Company has committed to renting this space
through June 2014.

On June 5, 2013, the Company entered into a lease to rent office space in Woodland Hills, California for its corporate
headquarters. The landlord is 20259 Ventura Blvd LP, which is an affiliate of a stockholder of our company. The term
is for ninety days and can be renewed, or terminated, by either party with thirty days written notice. The monthly rent
is $6,758. The Company has committed to renting this space through May 2014.

Upon the Company’s acquisition of Rocky Mountain Hydroponics, LLC and Evergreen Garden Center, LLC
(“RMH/EGC”) (see “NOTE 3 - PURCHASE – ROCKY MOUNTAIN HYDROPONICS and EVERGREEN GARDEN
CENTER”) the Company assumed the lease for the RMH/EGC retail hydroponics store located in Portland, Maine. Per
the terms of the lease, the commencement date was May 1, 2013 with an expiration date of April 30, 2016. The
monthly rent for year one of the lease is $4,917, with monthly rent of $5,065 in year two, and monthly rent of $5,217
in year three (the final year) of the lease.

Upon the Company’s acquisition of Rocky Mountain Hydroponics, LLC and Evergreen Garden Center, LLC
(“RMH/EGC”) (see “NOTE 3 - PURCHASE – ROCKY MOUNTAIN HYDROPONICS and EVERGREEN GARDEN
CENTER”) the Company assumed the lease for the RMH/EGC retail hydroponics store located in Plaistow, New
Hampshire. Per the terms of the lease, the commencement date was May 1, 2013 with an expiration date of July 31,
2015. The monthly rent throughout the term of the lease is $2,105, with the first three months of the lease being rent
free.

On August 26, 2013, the Company entered into a lease agreement for warehouse and retail space for its Greners
(Business Bloom, Inc.) business unit in Santa Rosa, California. Per the terms of the lease agreement, the
commencement date was September 1, 2013 with an expiration date of August 31, 2015. The monthly rent is $3,000.

On September 23, 2013, the Company entered into an Assignment and Assumption and Amendment of Lease
Agreement (the “Agreement”) for its retail hydroponics store in Peabody, Massachusetts.  Per the terms of the
Agreement, the original lease between the landlord and Evergreen Garden Center, LLC was assigned from Evergreen
Garden Center, LLC to GrowLife Hydroponics, Inc. (“GLH”). In addition, per the terms of the Agreement, the term of
the lease was extended from the original expiration date of October 31, 2013 to the new termination date of October
31, 2014. The monthly rent remained at $4,500 through October 31, 2014.
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On October 21, 2013, the Company entered into a lease agreement for retail space for its hydroponics store in Avon
(Vail), Colorado. Per the terms of the lease agreement, the lease expires on September 30, 2018. Monthly rent for year
one of the lease is $2,606 and increases 3.5% per year thereafter through the end of the lease.

On January 23, 2014, the Company entered into a lease agreement for retail space for its hydroponics store in Boulder,
Colorado. Per the terms of the lease agreement, the lease commences on February 1, 2014 and expires on April 30,
2017. Monthly rent for year one of the lease is $4,051, with monthly rent of $4,173 in year two, $4,298 in year three,
and $4,427 for month 37 through 39.

Rent expense was $114,720 and $38,895 for the three month periods ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Convertible Notes Payable

As detailed in “NOTE 23 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS”, the Company is currently in default on its 7% convertible notes
payable. Per the terms of these notes (see “NOTE 18 - 7% CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE”), upon default the
Holder(s) may, at their sole discretion, accelerate these 7% convertible notes payable. Upon any such acceleration of
these 7% convertible notes, the Company shall be obligated to pay an amount equal to the greater of (i) one hundred
and twenty percent (120%) of the outstanding principal of these 7% convertible notes (plus all accrued but unpaid
interest), and (ii) the product of (a) the highest closing price for the Company’s common stock for the five (5) days on
which the Primary Market is open for business immediately preceding such acceleration and (b) a fraction, the
numerator of which is the outstanding principal of this 7% convertible, and the denominator of which is the applicable
conversion price as of the date of determination. As of March 31, 2014, the outstanding principal on these 7%
convertible notes was $1,250,000 with accrued and unpaid interest totaling $27,807. Should the Holder(s) choose to
accelerate these 7% convertible notes, the Company would be required to pay the Holders $1,500,000 of principal and
all accrued and unpaid interest. An acceleration of these 7% convertible notes would have a significant adverse affect
on the Company’s cash flows and should the Company be unsuccessful in negotiating an extension or other
modification, it may have to restructure its operations, divest all or a portion of its business, or file for bankruptcy.

Future minimum contractual cash commitments are summarized below:

Less Than
Greater
Than

Contractual Cash Obligations Total 1 Year 2-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years
Operating leases $710,144 $344,012 $286,484 $79,648 $0
Notes payable 1,527,807 1,527,807 0 0 0
Capital expenditures 0 0 0 0 0

$2,237,951 $1,871,819 $286,484 $79,648 $0
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NOTE 22 – EMPLOYMENT CONTRACTS

On June 7, 2013, we entered into an Executive Services Agreement (the “Hunt Agreement”) with Rob Hunt, pursuant to
which we engaged Mr. Hunt, from the close of business on June 7, 2013 through June 7, 2015, to provide consulting
and management services as the President of GrowLife Hydroponics, Inc. Upon Mr. Hunt’s employment by the
Company, the Company shall pay Mr. Hunt an annual salary of $75,000 (the “Base Salary”). Such Base Salary shall
increase to the annual rate of $100,000 on the first day of the month following the month in which GrowLife’s gross
monthly sales reach $840,000. Mr. Hunt shall also be entitled to receive an annual cash bonus (“Bonus”) as follows for
its fiscal year 2013: 100% of the Base Salary in effect as of December 31 of the Company’s applicable fiscal year, if
GrowLife achieves 150% of sales projections for such fiscal year; 75% of the Base Salary in effect as of December 31
of the Company’s applicable fiscal year, if GrowLife achieves at least 125% but less than 150% of sales projections for
such fiscal year; and 50% of the Base Salary in effect as of December 31 of the Company’s applicable fiscal year, if
GrowLife achieves at least 100% of sales projections for such fiscal year. The Bonus, if any, shall be paid to Mr. Hunt
upon the earlier of (1) the completion of the preparation of the Company’s audited financial statements for such fiscal
year and (2) April 1 of the Company’s next fiscal year. Mr. Hunt shall be entitled to receive an annual cash bonus
(“Bonus”) as follows for its fiscal year 2014: 100% of the Base Salary in effect as of December 31 of the Company’s
applicable fiscal year, if GrowLife achieves 150% of sales projections for such fiscal year; 75% of the Base Salary in
effect as of December 31 of the Company’s applicable fiscal year, if GrowLife achieves at least 125% but less than
150% of sales projections for such fiscal year; and 50% of the Base Salary in effect as of December 31 of the
Company’s applicable fiscal year, if GrowLife achieves at least 100% of sales projections for such fiscal year. The
Bonus, if any, shall be paid to Mr. Hunt upon the earlier of (1) the completion of the preparation of the Company’s
audited financial statements for such fiscal year and (2) April 1 of the Company’s next fiscal year. Mr. Hunt shall
receive, upon approval by the Company’s Board of Directors, non-qualified options to purchase 12,000,000 shares of
the Company’s common stock, at a per share exercise price equal to the fair market value of one share of the
Company’s common stock on the date of grant, which is June 7, 2013 and represents the date on which Mr. Hunt
became a Director of the Company and President of GrowLife Hydroponics, Inc., vesting in 24 equal monthly
installments on the last day of each month commencing from and after June 7, 2013. The Company shall also apply
for and obtain “term” life insurance upon the life of Mr. Hunt, effective as of January 1, 2012, in an amount equal to Mr.
Hunt’s then current Base Salary. The beneficiary of such policy shall be the person(s) designated by Mr. Hunt. During
Mr. Hunt’s term of employment hereunder, the Company shall provide to Mr. Hunt a monthly housing stipend of
$1,500. In the event that the Company and Mr. Hunt mutually agree to Mr. Hunt’s relocation to Los Angeles County,
California, the Company shall pay Mr. Hunt’s relocation costs, up to a maximum amount of $5,000, and shall pay for
reasonable temporary housing for Mr. Hunt and his family for a period of 3 months. During Mr. Hunt’s term of
employment hereunder, Mr. Hunt and, to the extent applicable, Mr. Hunt’s dependents and beneficiaries, shall be
allowed to enjoy and participate in all benefit plans and programs, including improvements or modifications of the
same, which are now, or may hereafter be, available to other executive employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Such benefit plans and programs shall include, without limitation, medical insurance, D&O insurance,
and such similar benefits, plans and programs as may be maintained by the Company. During Mr. Hunt’s term of
employment hereunder, Mr. Hunt shall be entitled to incur and be reimbursed by the Company for all reasonable
business expenses. Mr. Hunt’s engagement with the Company may be terminated for the reasons set forth below. To
the extent Mr. Hunt serves as a member of the Company’s Board of Directors, at the request of the Company’s Board of
Directors, Mr. Hunt agrees to resign from his position as a director of the Company within 24 hours after his
engagement is terminated. This Agreement shall terminate upon Mr. Hunt’s death (“Death”). The Company shall pay Mr.
Hunt’s estate (i) on the date it would have been payable to Mr. Hunt any unpaid Base Salary and accrued vacation, if
any, earned prior to Mr. Hunt’s Death, and (ii) any unpaid reimbursements due Mr. Hunt for expenses incurred by Mr.
Hunt prior to his Death. If, as a result of Mr. Hunt’s incapacity due to physical or mental illness, thereby causing Mr.
Hunt to have been absent from the full time performance of substantially all of his material duties with the Company
for a continuous period of 180 days, Mr. Hunt’s engagement may be terminated by the Company or by Mr. Hunt for
“Disability.” If terminated for disability, the Company shall pay Mr. Hunt: (a) any unpaid Base Salary and accrued
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vacation, if any, earned prior to the Effective Date of Termination, and (b) any unpaid reimbursements due for
expenses incurred prior to the Effective Date of Termination. The Company may terminate Mr. Hunt’s engagement
hereunder for Cause. In the event of termination for Cause, Mr. Hunt will be entitled to such Base Salary and accrued
vacation, if any, earned through the date of termination which earned amounts shall be payable on the date of
termination for Cause, but will not be entitled to any other salary, benefits, bonuses, or other compensation after such
date. This Agreement may also be terminated Without Cause by the Company at any time by the delivery to Mr. Hunt
of a written notice of termination. Upon such termination, Mr. Hunt shall be entitled to receive the following: (a) such
Base Salary and accrued vacation, if any, earned through the date of termination; (b) a termination fee equal to his
then-current Base Salary for six equal monthly installments; and (c) his options shall continue to vest in accordance
with their terms, and such options shall expire on the latest termination date set forth in the applicable stock option
agreements. Mr. Hunt may terminate this Agreement upon 30 days written notice to the Company. In the event Mr.
Hunt terminates this Agreement for “Good Reason,” Mr. Hunt shall be entitled to receive: (a) such Base Salary and
accrued vacation, if any, earned through the date of termination; (b) a termination fee equal to his then-current Base
Salary for six equal monthly installments; and (c) his options shall continue to vest in accordance with their terms, and
such options shall expire on the latest termination date set forth in the applicable stock option agreements. In the event
Mr. Hunt terminates this Agreement other than for Disability or Good Reason, the Company shall pay Mr. Hunt: (a)
such Base Salary and accrued vacation, if any, earned through the date of termination; and (b) any unpaid
reimbursements for expenses incurred through the date of termination.
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On November 3, 2013, we entered into an Executive Services Agreement (the “Scott Agreement”) with Sterling Scott,
pursuant to which we engaged Mr. Scott, from the close of business on November 2, 2013 through November 2, 2016,
to provide consulting and management services as our Chief Executive Officer. Per the terms of the Scott Agreement,
Mr. Scott shall receive an annual salary of $120,000, he shall be eligible for any benefits made generally available by
the Company, he shall be eligible to receive any bonuses made generally available by the Company, and he shall be
reimbursed for any reasonable expenses incurred while performing his duties as the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer. The Scott Agreement also granted Mr. Scott non-qualified options to purchase 12,000,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock at an exercise price equal to the fair market value of one share of the Company’s common
stock on the date of grant. The options include a cashless exercise feature and vest in twenty-four (24) equal monthly
installments on the last day of each month commencing on October 31, 2013. In the event that the Company’s Board of
Directors determines to accept any offers that would when executed result in a change of control transaction involving
more than 50% of the issued shares of Company, then vesting of non-qualified options to Mr. Scott shall be
accelerated, at the election in writing by the Mr. Scott, to the date on which the Company’s Board of Directors
determined to accept such offer. Except in situations where the employment of Mr. Scott is terminated For Cause, By
Death or By Disability, in the event that the Company terminates the employment of Mr. Scott at any time, Mr. Scott
will be eligible to immediately receive all remaining compensation due under the Scott Agreement. This calculation
will be based on the then-current Base Salary of Mr. Scott and the amount of days remaining in the Employment
Term. Mr. Scott shall also immediately receive the issuance of five percent (5.0%) of the Company’s common stock on
a fully diluted basis, giving effect to the issuance. Mr. Scott shall not be entitled to any severance payments if his
employment is terminated For Cause, By Death or By Disability, or if Mr. Scott’s employment is terminated by Mr.
Scott. For purposes of the Scott Agreement, “For Cause” shall mean: (i) Mr. Scott commits a crime involving
dishonesty, breach of trust, or physical harm to any person; or (ii) Mr. Scott willfully engages in conduct that is in bad
faith and materially injurious to the Company, including but not limited to, misappropriation of trade secrets, fraud or
embezzlement. The Company may terminate Mr. Scott’s employment For Cause at any time, without any advance
notice. The Company shall pay to Mr. Scott all compensation to which Mr. Scott is entitled up through the date of
termination, subject to any other rights or remedies of Employer under law; and thereafter all obligations of the
Company under this Agreement shall cease. Mr. Scott’s employment shall terminate automatically upon his death. The
Company shall pay to Mr. Scott’s beneficiaries or estate, as appropriate, any compensation then due and owing.
Thereafter all obligations of the Company under the Scott Agreement shall cease. If Mr. Scott becomes eligible for the
Company’s long term disability benefits or if, in the sole opinion of the Company, Mr. Scott is unable to carry out the
responsibilities and functions of the position held by Mr. Scott by reason of any physical or mental impairment for
more than ninety (90) consecutive days or more than one hundred and twenty (120) days in any twelve (12) month
period, then, to the extent permitted by law, the Company may terminate Mr. Scott’s employment. The Company shall
pay to Mr. Scott all compensation to which he is entitled up through the date of termination, and thereafter all
obligations of the Company under this Agreement shall cease. Mr. Scott may terminate employment with the
Company at any time for any reason or no reason at all, upon thirty (30) days’ advance written notice. During such
notice period Mr. Scott shall continue to diligently perform all of his duties hereunder. The Company shall have the
option, in its sole discretion, to make Mr. Scott’s termination effective at any time prior to the end of such notice
period as long as the Company pays Mr. Scott all compensation to which he is entitled up through the last day of the
thirty-day notice period. Thereafter all obligations of the Company shall cease.
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On November 3, 2013, we entered into an Executive Services Agreement (the “Genesi Agreement”) with John Genesi,
pursuant to which we engaged Mr. Genesi, from the close of business on November 2, 2013 through November 2,
2016, to provide consulting and management services as our Chief Financial Officer. Per the terms of the Genesi
Agreement, Mr. Genesi shall receive an annual salary of $100,000, he shall be eligible for any benefits made generally
available by the Company, he shall be eligible to receive any bonuses made generally available by the Company, and
he shall be reimbursed for any reasonable expenses incurred while performing his duties as the Company’s Chief
Financial Officer. The Genesi Agreement also granted Mr. Genesi non-qualified options to purchase 10,000,000
shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price equal to the fair market value of one share of the
Company’s common stock on the date of grant. The options include a cashless exercise feature and vest in twenty-four
(24) equal monthly installments on the last day of each month commencing on October 31, 2013. In the event that the
Company’s Board of Directors determines to accept any offers that would when executed result in a change of control
transaction involving more than 50% of the issued shares of Company, then vesting of non-qualified options to Mr.
Genesi shall be accelerated, at the election in writing by the Mr. Genesi, to the date on which the Company’s Board of
Directors determined to accept such offer. Except in situations where the employment of Mr. Genesi is terminated For
Cause, By Death or By Disability, in the event that the Company terminates the employment of Mr. Genesi at any
time, Mr. Genesi will be eligible to immediately receive all remaining compensation due under the Genesi Agreement.
This calculation will be based on the then-current Base Salary of Mr. Genesi and the amount of days remaining in the
Employment Term. Mr. Genesi shall also immediately receive the issuance of two and one-half percent (2.5%) of the
Company’s common stock on a fully diluted basis, giving effect to the issuance. Mr. Genesi shall not be entitled to any
severance payments if his employment is terminated For Cause, By Death or By Disability, or if Mr. Genesi’s
employment is terminated by Mr. Genesi. For purposes of the Genesi Agreement, “For Cause” shall mean: (i) Mr.
Genesi commits a crime involving dishonesty, breach of trust, or physical harm to any person; or (ii) Mr. Genesi
willfully engages in conduct that is in bad faith and materially injurious to the Company, including but not limited to,
misappropriation of trade secrets, fraud or embezzlement. The Company may terminate Mr. Genesi’s employment For
Cause at any time, without any advance notice. The Company shall pay to Mr. Genesi all compensation to which Mr.
Genesi is entitled up through the date of termination, subject to any other rights or remedies of Employer under law;
and thereafter all obligations of the Company under this Agreement shall cease. Mr. Genesi’s employment shall
terminate automatically upon his death. The Company shall pay to Mr. Genesi’s beneficiaries or estate, as appropriate,
any compensation then due and owing. Thereafter all obligations of the Company under the Genesi Agreement shall
cease. If Mr. Genesi becomes eligible for the Company’s long term disability benefits or if, in the sole opinion of the
Company, Mr. Genesi is unable to carry out the responsibilities and functions of the position held by Mr. Genesi by
reason of any physical or mental impairment for more than ninety (90) consecutive days or more than one hundred
and twenty (120) days in any twelve (12) month period, then, to the extent permitted by law, the Company may
terminate Mr. Genesi’s employment. The Company shall pay to Mr. Genesi all compensation to which he is entitled up
through the date of termination, and thereafter all obligations of the Company under this Agreement shall cease. Mr.
Genesi may terminate employment with the Company at any time for any reason or no reason at all, upon thirty (30)
days’ advance written notice. During such notice period Mr. Genesi shall continue to diligently perform all of his
duties hereunder. The Company shall have the option, in its sole discretion, to make Mr. Genesi’s termination effective
at any time prior to the end of such notice period as long as the Company pays Mr. Genesi all compensation to which
he is entitled up through the last day of the thirty-day notice period. Thereafter all obligations of the Company shall
cease.
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On December 4, 2013, we entered into an Executive Services Agreement (the “Hegyi Agreement”) with Marco Hegyi,
pursuant to which we engaged Mr. Hegyi, from the close of business on December 4, 2013 through December 4,
2016, to provide consulting and management services as our President. Per the terms of the Hegyi Agreement, Mr.
Hegyi will establish a Company in Seattle, Washington while also maintaining operations in the Southern California
area. Mr. Hegyi’s annual compensation is $150,000 for the first year of the Term; $250,000 for the second year of the
Term; and $250,000 for the third year of the Term. Mr. Hegyi is also entitled to receive an annual bonus equal to four
percent (4%) of the Company’s EBITDA for that year. The annual bonus shall be paid no later than 31 days (i.e., by
January 31st) following the end of each calendar year. Mr. Hegyi’s first annual bonus will be calculated based on the
Company’s EBITDA for calendar year 2014, with such bonus payable on or before January 31, 2015. If Mr. Hegyi’s
employment is terminated for any reason prior to the expiration of the Term, as applicable, his annual bonus will be
prorated for that year based on the number of days worked in that year. At the commencement of Mr. Hegyi’s
employment, he (or to a trust or other related or affiliated entity designated by Mr. Hegyi for estate planning purposes)
is entitled to a Warrant to purchase up to 25,000,000 shares of common stock of the Company at an exercise price of
$0.08 per share (the “Hegyi Warrant”) (see “NOTE 20 – STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICT”). The warrants shall be exercisable
for a period of 10 years commencing on the date on which the Company completes the increase in the number of its
authorized shares of common stock. Immediately after the execution of the Hegyi agreement, the Company will
increase its authorized shares in an amount sufficient to have authorized shares of common stock available for the full
exercise of Hegyi’s warrant to purchase up to 25,000,000 shares of common stock. The Company undertakes to: (1)
have the Board of the Company vote to amend its certificate of incorporation to increase the authorized shares of
common stock in the Company by a sufficient amount to provide for the Hegyi Warrant to be immediately exercisable
for 25,000,000 shares of common stock, subject to shareholder approval; (2) have the Board reserve up to 25,000,000
shares of common stock for exercise of the Hegyi Warrant, subject to the completion of the increase in authorized
shares, and (3) prepare a Company proxy statement for and hold a meeting of the shareholders of the Company to vote
to approve the amendment to the Company’s certificate of incorporation to increase the authorized shares. If an
amendment to the Company’s certificate of incorporation increasing the authorized shares has not been filed with the
Secretary of State of the State of Delaware within six (6) months from the date of the Hegyi Agreement, then such
failures shall be a Change of Control event. The Company will also reimburse Mr. Hegyi for all reasonable and
necessary travel and other out-of-pocket business expenses incurred by him in the performance of his duties and
responsibilities, subject to and consistent with the Company’s business expense reimbursement policies in effect from
time to time, including an itemized list of the expenses incurred and appropriate receipts and supporting
documentation. Mr. Hegyi will be entitled to participate in all group employment benefits that are offered by the
Company to the Company’s senior executives and management employees from time to time, subject to the terms and
conditions of such benefit plans, including any eligibility requirements. In addition, the Company will purchase and
maintain during the Term a “key manager” insurance policy on Mr. Hegyi’s life in the amount of $4,000,000, paid as
$2,000,000 payable to Mr. Hegyi’s named heirs or estate as the beneficiary, and $2,000,000 payable to the Company.
If, prior to the expiration of the Term, the Company terminates Mr. Hegyi’s employment for “Cause”, or if Mr. Hegyi
voluntarily terminates his employment without “Good Reason”, or if Mr. Hegyi’s employment is terminated by reason of
his death, then all of the Company’s obligations hereunder shall cease immediately, and Mr. Hegyi will not be entitled
to any further compensation beyond any pro-rated base salary due and bonus amounts earned through the effective
date of termination. Mr. Hegyi will also be reimbursed for any expenses incurred prior to the date of termination for
which he was not previously reimbursed. If the Company terminates Mr. Hegyi’s employment at any time prior to the
expiration of the Term without Cause, or if Mr. Hegyi terminates his employment at any time for “Good Reason” or due
to a “Disability”, Mr. Hegyi will be entitled to receive: (i) his base salary amount through the end of the Term; and (ii)
his annual bonus amount for each year during the remainder of the Term, which bonus amount shall be equal to the
greater of (A) the annual bonus amount for the immediately preceding year, or (B) the bonus amount that would have
been earned for the year of termination, absent such termination. If there has been a “Change in Control” and the
Company (or its successor or the surviving entity) terminates Mr. Hegyi’s employment without Cause as part of or in
connection with such Change in Control (including any such termination occurring within one (1) month prior to the
effective date of such Change in Control), then in addition to the benefits set forth above, Mr. Hegyi will be entitled to
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the following: (i) an increase of $300,000 in his annual base salary amount (or an additional $25,000 per month)
through the end of the Term; plus (ii) a gross-up in the annual base salary amount each year to account for and to
offset any tax that may be due by Mr. Hegyi on any payments received or to be received by Mr. Hegyi under this
Agreement that would result in a “parachute payment” as described in Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended. If the Company (or its successor or the surviving entity) terminates Mr. Hegyi’s employment
without Cause within twelve (12) months after the effective date of any Change in Control, or if Mr. Hegyi terminates
his employment for Good Reason within twelve (12) months after the effective date of any Change in Control, then in
addition to the benefits set forth above, Mr. Hegyi will be entitled to the following: (i) an increase of $300,000 in his
annual base salary amount (or an additional $25,000 per month), which increased annual base salary amount shall be
paid for the remainder of the Term or for two (2) years following the Change in Control, whichever is longer; (ii) a
gross-up in the annual base salary amount each year to account for and to offset any tax that may be due by Mr. Hegyi
on any payments received or to be received by Mr. Hegyi under this Letter Agreement that would result in a “parachute
payment” as described in Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended; (iii) payment of Mr. Hegyi’s
annual bonus amount as set forth above for each year during the remainder of the Term or for two (2) years following
the Change in Control, whichever is longer; and (iv) health insurance coverage provided for and paid by the Company
for the remainder of the Term or for two (2) years following the Change in Control, whichever is longer.
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NOTE 23 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Closing of Bank Accounts

On March 31, 2014, the Company received notice from one of its primary banking institutions that its bank accounts
with that institution were going to be closed. The Company immediately transferred all of its funds held at that bank to
its other primary banking institution. On April 7, 2014, the banking institution that the Company had transferred its
funds into upon receiving notice on March 31, 2014, informed the Company that it would be closing the Company’s
bank accounts effective May 7, 2014. Neither of these banking institutions provided the Company with an explanation
as to why they were closing the Company’s bank accounts. Since receiving this second notice of closure on April 7,
2014, the Company has secured bank accounts for each of its six (6) retail hydroponics stores and for Greners. As of
the time of this filing the Company is still working to secure bank accounts for both GrowLife, Inc. and Phototron,
Inc. At this time, the Company cannot be certain that it will be successful in its search to find bank accounts for
GrowLife, Inc. and/or Phototron, Inc., nor can it be certain that the bank accounts that it recently secured will not be
closed by the respective banking institutions. These factors could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Resignation of Eric Shevin

On April 1, 2014, Eric Shevin, an independent member of the Company’s Board of Directors, resigned as a Director.
His resignation from the Company’s Board of Directors was voluntary and was due to his desire to lessen the demands
of his work schedule.

Resignation of Justin Manns

On April 3, 2014, Justin Manns, the Controller for GrowLife Hydroponics, Inc. and a former Director of the Company
and the former Chief Financial Officer of the Company, resigned as Controller of GrowLife Hydroponics, Inc.
effective April 3, 2014.

Distribution Agreement with VegaMatrix

On April 7, 2014, the Company announced that it had been selected by Kyle Kushman and his companies to handle
national distribution of the VegaMatrix line of nutrients and supplements. The VegaMatrix product line, particularly
the organic formulations for which Kyle Kushman is world renowned, have contributed to a remarkable 18 different
Cannabis Cup awards over the last several years. Nutrients and supplements for growing legal cannabis are a major
part of the Company’s business in its retail and online sales channels.  Nutrients and supplements for the legal cannabis
industry typically represent approximately 30-40% of the reported $1.6 billion annual sector sales in the U.S. and
consistently represent some of the highest gross margin products in hydroponics stores across the country. The
Company expects to capture a minimum 3% market share with the VegaMatrix line, focused principally on the
premium quality growers, which is already the Company's core market emphasis. The regulatory emphasis in certain
states such as Massachusetts on sustainable organic production methods also is expected to provide clear advantages
to the VegaMatrix product line, and may on a regional basis allow much higher market share capture.

Conversion of 7% Convertible Note Payable

On April 9, 2014, a Holder of the Company’s 7% Convertible Notes Payable (see “NOTE 18 – 7% CONVERTIBLE
NOTES PAYABLE”) converted $125,000 of principal and $8,676 of accrued and unpaid interest into 5,347,032 shares
of the Company’s common stock at a per share conversion price of $0.025, which is in accordance with the terms of
the note payable. Upon conversion, this Holder had $125,000 of principal outstanding on his note payable.

Edgar Filing: GROWLIFE, INC. - Form 10-Q

58



- 42 -

Edgar Filing: GROWLIFE, INC. - Form 10-Q

59



Suspension of Trading of the Company’s Securities

On April 10, 2014, the Company received notice from the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) that trading of
the Company’s common stock on the OTCBB was to be suspended for the period from 9:30 A.M. Eastern Standard
Time on April 10, 2014 through 11:59 P.M. Eastern Standard Time on April 24, 2014. The SEC issued its order
pursuant to Section 12(k) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. According to the notice received by the Company
from the SEC: “It appears to the Securities and Exchange Commission that the public interest and the protection of
investors require a suspension of trading in the securities of GrowLife, Inc. (“GrowLife”) because of concerns regarding
the accuracy and adequacy of information in the marketplace and potentially manipulative transactions in GrowLife’s
common stock.: As of the time of this filing, the Company has not received notice from the SEC that it is being
formally investigated. On April 25, 2014, shares of the Company’s common stock resumed trading on the “grey sheets”
and are not formally quoted or listed on any stock exchange at this time.

Termination of R.X.N.B, Inc. and CEN Biotech, Inc. Agreement

On April 10, 2014, the Company received notice from both R.X.N.B., Inc. and CEN Biotech, Inc. (see “NOTE 5 –
INTEREST PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH WISE PHOENIX, LLC AND AJOA HOLDINGS, LLC”) that both
companies were rescinding and/or voiding their respective Interest Purchase Agreements with the Company. The
notification indicated that both R.X.N.B., Inc. and CEN Biotech, Inc. were rescinding and/or voiding their respective
agreements when each company became aware that the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission suspended the
Company’s trading in securities due to potential issues of accuracy and adequacy of information in the marketplace.

Default on Convertible Notes Payable

On April 10, 2014, as a result of the suspension in the trading of the Company’s securities, the Company went into
default on its 6% Senior Secured Convertible Notes Payable (see “NOTE 16 – 6% SENIOR SECURED
CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE”) and its 7% Convertible Notes Payable (see “NOTE 18 – 7% CONVERTIBLE
NOTES PAYABLE”). As a result, the Company is now accruing interest on these notes at the applicable “default” rate of
interest as stipulated in the note agreements. The default rate of interest on the 6% Senior Secured Convertible Notes
Payable is 12% per annum while the default rate of interest on the 7% Convertible Notes Payable is 24% per annum.
Furthermore, as a result of being in default on these notes, the Holders can, at their sole discretion, call these notes.
Although no such action has been taken by the Holders at the time of this filing, the Company has reclassified these
notes as a current liability rather than long-term debt. If the Company is not successful in curing the default or
negotiating an extension or other modification, it may have to restructure its operations, divest all or a portion of its
business, or file for bankruptcy.

Shareholder Support

On April 24, 2014, the Company announced a new shareholder hotline and email communication system to address
anticipated increases in shareholder questions. The additional staffing is intended to allow the Company to better
provide available information to investors when call volume is expected to increase following the Company's
temporary suspension from trading. Shareholders were invited to use the following contacts:

Shareholder Support Hotline:  (866) 632-3111

Email:  shareholdersupport@growlifeinc.com

The Company also strongly encouraged investors to read recent and future Shareholder Letters at the Company's
official website at www.GrowLifeInc.com under the “NEWS” tab.

Edgar Filing: GROWLIFE, INC. - Form 10-Q

60



- 43 -

Edgar Filing: GROWLIFE, INC. - Form 10-Q

61



Restricted Stock Cancellation Agreements

On April 25, 2014, the Company entered into four (4) separate Restricted Stock Cancellation Agreements (the
“Agreements”) with the four (4) independent members of the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Directors”), pursuant to
which the Directors agreed to each cancel 500,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock granted to each
Director in Q1 2014 (the “Restricted Stock”). The Restricted Stock was granted as part of a quarterly independent
Director Compensation plan instituted by resolution of the Board of Directors in August 2012. Upon execution of the
Agreements, all rights to or under the Restricted Stock by the Directors was terminated and said Restricted stock was
cancelled and delivered back to the Company.

GrowLife 2.0

On April 30, 2014, the Company announced an initial component of its GrowLife 2.0 go-forward plan with the
creation of stronger governance policies at the Board level, the restructuring of Board compensation, and the creation
of guiding principles for the long-term growth of the company. A new compensation plan for independent Directors
on the Company’s Board has been proposed to replace the stock award plan originally established in August 2012. The
initial step in the implementation of the proposed compensation plan is the agreement by all four independent
directors of the Company to cancel their respective 500,000 share stock grants for Q1 2014 issued pursuant to the
August 2012 plan. The proposed plan shifts compensation away from historical stock awards, and moves it toward
incenting/rewarding independent Directors for overseeing the long-term growth and expansion of the company.
Director compensation will become more equitable and in-line with the company's performance. Also fundamental is
stronger business acumen shared throughout the company, and compliance policies that ensure the Company’s
business practices and investment strategies are in full compliance with regulatory requirements and market dynamics.
To provide oversight and clear direction, the Company’s Board of Directors has established four essential committees:

•  Audit Committee to provide greater oversight on all compliance matters;
•  Compensation Committee to review compensation programs, specifically around stock incentive plans;

•  Nominating Committee to identify and screen additional board members who are committed to the long-term
growth of the company;

•  Mergers and Acquisitions Committee to guide purchasing and investments by the company

Class Action Lawsuit

On May 2, 2014, the Company was served notice that a Class Action lawsuit had been filed in the United States
District Court or the Central District of California on behalf of Randy Romero, individually, and on behalf of all
others similarly situated. The complaint named GrowLife, Inc., Sterling Scott, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer
and a Director, John Genesi, the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, Marco Hegyi, the Company’s President and a
Director, Rob Hunt, the President of GrowLife Hydroponics, Inc. and a Director, Eric Shevin, a former Director, Alan
Hammer, a Director, Anthony Ciabattoni, a Director, and Jeff Giarraputo, a Director, as defendants. The lawsuit was
filed by The Rosen Law Firm, P.A. and alleges violation of Federal securities laws by the defendants named above.

Resignation of Alan Hammer

On May 6, 2014, Alan Hammer, an independent member of the Company’s Board of Directors, resigned as a Director.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

This discussion summarizes the significant factors affecting our operating results, financial condition and liquidity and
cash flows for the three month periods ended March 31, 2014 and 2013. The discussion and analysis that follows
should be read together with the condensed consolidated financial statements and the notes to the financial statements
included elsewhere in this report. Except for historical information, the matters discussed in this Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations are forward looking statements that involve
risks and uncertainties and are based upon judgments concerning various factors that are beyond our control. Our
actual results could differ materially from the results anticipated in any forward-looking statements as a result of a
variety of factors, including those discussed in the section of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2013 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 31, 2014, captioned “Risk Factors.”

Overview

General

GrowLife companies manufacture and supply branded equipment and expendables, with expendables being products
such as nutrients and soils that are consumed as part of the cultivation process and therefore needing to be replenished
on a continual basis, that promote and enhance the characteristics of quality and quantity of indoor and outdoor urban
gardening. GrowLife also controls premier industry portal www.cannabis.org, which we believe will serve as another
widely recognized and authoritative social channel for branded product promotion, sales, and information as and to
the extent the regulatory landscape changes. As and to the extent the state and federal regulatory landscape changes,
we will continue opportunistic expansion of our  business in regional and state-by-state markets of legal medical
marijuana across the United States. The GrowLife family of companies now includes the online distribution hub
Greners, the pioneering and expanding Stealth Grow product line, and retail stores that can service customers from
coast to coast.

With regard to the products sold at our retail hydroponics stores in our business to business relationships, and directly,
the Company typically purchases its products from the actual manufacturer or a wholesale distributor and resells the
products. Most of our vendors provide payment terms ranging from seven (7) days to thirty (30) days while some
require payment at the time we purchase them. The Company also more directly manages supply chains in which
GrowLife company branded products are produced, principally under the Stealth Grow brand, or under a co-brand
shared by GrowLife, Stealth Grow, and the brands of our business to business partners. With regard to our Phototron
units, the Company purchases the required materials and then assembles the actual working unit at our Gardena, CA
facility, with the finished, and working, Phototron unit then being shipped directly to our customers.

We have focused on the urban gardening industry in the United States and have targeted legal growers of medical
marijuana and general gardening enthusiasts. The majority of the products that we sell are primarily used in the
cultivation, in a legal and law abiding manner, of cannabis but can also be used to cultivate most any flowers and/or
vegetables. GrowLife and its business units are organized, and aim to operate, in accordance with applicable state and
federal laws. Accordingly, if and to the extent that state and federal laws permit the nationwide legal use of marijuana
and/or medical marijuana, we expect to commercialize our products in that market.
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From time to time, the Company may make modest investments in public or even privately held companies in our
industry segment in order to facilitate business opportunities of the Company.  The first such investment by the
Company occurred in May 2013, when the Company made an investment in the amount of $1,160 in Vape Holdings,
Inc. (“Vape”), a Nevada corporation. Following a series of transactions that are detailed in “NOTE 9 – INVESTMENT IN
A RELATED PARTY”, Vape Holdings, Inc. became a public company.  Through its investment, GrowLife received
and still owns as of the time of this filing 200,428 shares in Vape Holdings, Inc. (OTCQB:  VAPE).

Sterling Scott, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board, has a personal investment in Vape
as well. As of the time of this filing, Mr. Scott holds 257,320 shares of Vape’s common stock. As a result of Mr. Scott’s
ownership of Vape common stock, the Company has deemed Vape to be a related party and therefore has recorded its
investment in Vape as an “Investment in a related party” on its balance sheet. It should also be noted that the current
Chief Executive Officer of Vape is the former President of GrowLife, Inc.

Net revenue in the three month period ended March 31, 2014 was $2,382,836, which represents an increase of
$1,622,128, or approximately three times, the $760,708 of net revenue in the same period of fiscal year 2013. The
primary factor in the significant increase in net revenue is due to the $1,437,639 of net revenue from the five (5) retail
stores acquired in The Company’s acquisition of Rocky Mountain Hydroponics, LLC and Evergreen Garden Center,
LLC (see “NOTE 3 PURCHASE – ROCKY MOUNTAIN HYDROPONICS and EVERGREEN GARDEN CENTER").
This acquisition occurred in June 2013, which means that no such revenue is included in the three month period ended
March 31, 2013. Also included in the increase in net revenue is a $96,962 year-to-year gain posted by Greners.com,
the Company’s online hydroponics superstore, and a $109,118 year-to-year gain by Soja, Inc. (dba Urban Garden
Supply and a wholly-owned subsidiary of GrowLife Hydroponics, Inc.). The above mentioned increases in net
revenue were partially offset by a $21,591 decrease in net revenue by Phototron, Inc. and SG Technologies, Corp.

The following is a summary of the Company’s net revenue by brand:

Revenue By Brand

For the Three Months
Ended

March 31,
2014

March 31,
2013

GrowLife Hydroponics, Inc. (1) (2) $1,670,710 $123,953
Greners.com 634,879 537,917
Phototron & SG Technologies, Corp. 77,247 98,838

$2,382,836 $760,708

(1) Includes Soja, Inc. (dba Urban Garden Supply) and Rocky Mountain
Hydroponics, LLC, and Evergreen Garden Center, LLC in 2014 and only Soja, Inc. in
2013. See "Note 3 - PURCHASE – ROCKY MOUNTAIN HYDROPONICS and
EVERGREEN GARDEN CENTER" for a pro-forma comparison
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Brands:

PHOTOTRON  is a 25 year old USA manufacturer of plant growing systems complete with its own self-contained
attractive cabinet with a full line of accessories including nutrients, media, timers and controls.

STEALTH GROW is a brand identifier for a range of different indoor gardening products, including Hi-Power LED
lights for indoor growing.

Rocky Mountain Hydroponics & Organics and 58HYDRO are GrowLife company brands for retail stores, and an
online store respectively.

Channels:

GRENERS.COM is a Sonoma County, California based online supplier of a full range of hydroponic equipment for
shipment worldwide. Started as a family business, its core strengths lie in its extensive and continuously updated
product offering, its knowledgeable staff and their commitment to informative product reviews for customers, next
day shipping across the country. Greners joined the GrowLife family of companies in July 2012.

GROWLIFE HYDROPONICS owns and operates seven specialty hydroponics stores, with two in California, two in
Colorado, one in Maine, one in Massachusetts, and one in New Hampshire.. Our stores strives to provide realistic,
hands on product demonstrations of core technology in a one stop shopping environment with well-informed full
service sales and technical staff. Our core brands are first and foremost technology products that flourish where they
can be demonstrated.

CANNABIS.ORG is an information portal for the medical marijuana industry that is in development by GrowLife
with the objective of establishing the premier informational portal for the industry worldwide that , in the event of
regulatory change, can also be a major revenue driver for expansion of GrowLife brands, a platform for establishing
additional partnering and revenue share relationships and direct revenue generation through a myriad of ad revenue
opportunities.

Other:

GROWLIFE PRODUCTIONS is a wholly owned business unit dedicated to promotion of GrowLife’s core brands
through co-production and co-sponsorship of entertainment, lifestyle, music and film events across the country.
GrowLife Productions aims to foster a growing community around GrowLife brands. Our GrowLife Productions
business unit is no longer actively engaged in discussions or collaboration with Strategic Global Investments, Inc.

Competition

All of GrowLife’s brands and its retail and online distribution channels compete for customers and sales with many
different companies and products that are competitive today and likely to be even more competitive in the future.
Accordingly, it is essential that GrowLife and its companies continue to develop, improve, and refine brands and the
value propositions that are offered to customers.
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Competition in the retail hydroponics industry is significant, as competing stores continually open. With regard to
competition in the markets that our retail stores serve, there are numerous retail hydroponics stores within a relatively
short distance from the Company’s stores.

As for the Company’s SG Technologies subsidiary, which specializes in lighting equipment, there is also significant
competition in this market, as more companies enter this market while at the same time introducing lower-cost
products imported from countries such as China.

With regard to the Company’s Phototron subsidiary, which makes proprietary “grow chambers”, there are not very many
companies that manufacture similar products. However, the competition, or challenges, faced by Phototron have more
to do with the fact that its products serve a niche market consisting of individuals interested in growing only one plant
at a time. This niche market is becoming more challenging due to the fact that an increasing number of consumers are
no longer interested in a “one plant” solution.

The competition for the Company’s Greners.com subsidiary, which specializes in the online sale of hydroponics
products, is also substantial as other, competing online hydroponics stores have entered the market.

With regard to our company’s size relative to its competition, that is difficult to gauge as most of our competition is
privately held and does not publicly report their earnings. We do know of several competitors who own and operate
more retail hydroponics stores than we currently do, but they are privately held and, therefore, we are unable to
determine their size in terms of annual revenue.

We also face competition from other public companies that offer equipment and expendables. Moreover, as the
negative stigma associated with some types of urban gardening such as cannabis plants diminishes, it is very possible
that other better capitalized public and private companies many enter the market and may effectively challenge the
value proposition offered by GrowLife companies. These competitors may be able to attract customers more easily
because of their financial resources. Our larger competitors can also devote substantially more resources to business
development and may adopt more aggressive pricing policies. We will compete on the strength of our multiple
business opportunities, product offerings, and management.

While our management believes that we have the opportunity to be successful in the urban agriculture market, there
can be no assurance that we will be successful in accomplishing our business initiatives, or that we will be able to
maintain significant levels of revenues, or recognize net income, from the sale of our products and services.

Intellectual Property and Proprietary Rights

Our intellectual property consists of brands and their related trademarks and websites, customer lists and affiliations,
product know-how and technology, and marketing intangibles.

Our other intellectual property is primarily in the form of trademarks and domain names. We also hold rights to more
than 30 website addresses related to our business including websites that are actively used in our day-to-day business
such as www.growlifeinc.com, www.stealthgrow.com, www.phototron.com, www.greners.com, www.cannabis.org,
and www.urbangardensupplies.com.

We have a policy of entering into confidentiality and non-disclosure agreements with our employees and some of our
vendors and customers as we deem necessary. These agreements and policies are intended to protect our intellectual
property, but we cannot ensure that these agreements or the other steps we have taken to protect our intellectual
property will be sufficient to prevent theft, unauthorized use or adverse infringement claims. We cannot prevent piracy
of our methods and features, and we cannot determine the extent to which our methods and features are being pirated.
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Government Regulation

Currently, there are twenty states plus the District of Columbia that have laws and/or regulation that recognize in one
form or another legitimate medical uses for cannabis and consumer use of cannabis in connection with medical
treatment. Fifteen other states are considering legislation to similar effect. As of the date of this writing, the policy and
regulations of the Federal government and its agencies is that cannabis has no medical benefit and a range of activities
including cultivation and use of cannabis for personal use is prohibited on the basis of federal law and may or may not
be permitted on the basis of state law. Active enforcement of the current federal regulatory position on cannabis on a
regional or national basis may directly and adversely affect the willingness of customers of GrowLife to invest in or
buy products from GrowLife. Active enforcement of the current federal regulatory position on cannabis may thus
indirectly and adversely affect revenues and profits of the GrowLife companies.

Employees

As of March 31, 2014, we had 47 employees. Since inception, we have never had a work stoppage, and our employees
are not represented by a labor union. We consider our relationship with our employees to be positive.

Results of Operations

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 Compared to March 31, 2013

Revenue and cost of revenue

Net revenue in the three month period ended March 31, 2014 was $2,382,836, which represents an increase of
$1,622,128, or approximately three times, the $760,708 of net revenue in the same period of fiscal year 2013. The
primary factor in the significant increase in net revenue is due to the $1,437,639 of net revenue from the five (5) retail
stores acquired in the Company’s acquisition of Rocky Mountain Hydroponics, LLC and Evergreen Garden Center,
LLC (see “NOTE 3 PURCHASE – ROCKY MOUNTAIN HYDROPONICS and EVERGREEN GARDEN CENTER").
This acquisition occurred in June 2013, which means that no such revenue is included in the three month period ended
March 31, 2013. Also included in the increase in net revenue is a $96,962 year-to-year gain posted by Greners.com,
the Company’s online hydroponics superstore, and a $109,118 year-to-year gain by Soja, Inc. (dba Urban Garden
Supply and a wholly-owned subsidiary of GrowLife Hydroponics, Inc.). The above mentioned increases in net
revenue were partially offset by a $21,591 decrease in net revenue by Phototron, Inc. and SG Technologies, Inc.

Cost of revenue for the three month period ended March 31, 2014 was $1,862,958, or 78.2% of net revenue, while
cost of revenue in the same three month period in fiscal year 2013 was $511,583, or 67.3% of net revenue. The
increase in the Company’s cost of revenue, as measured as a percentage of net revenue, is a result of increased
competition, which results in the Company selling its products at a higher discount.

Gross profit for the three month period ended March 31, 2014 was $519,878, or 21.8% of net revenue while gross
profit for the same period in fiscal year 2013 was $249,126, or 32.7% of net revenue. As previously stated, the
decrease in gross profit, as measured as a percentage of net revenue, is a result of increased price discounting.
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Expenses

Total general and administrative expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2014 were $1,189,888, an increase of
$632,895 from the $556,993 incurred during the same three-month period in 2013. A primary factor in the increase in
general and administrative expenses on a year-to-year basis is the Company’s acquisition of Rocky Mountain
Hydroponics, LLC and Evergreen Garden Center, LLC (see “NOTE 3 PURCHASE – ROCKY MOUNTAIN
HYDROPONICS and EVERGREEN GARDEN CENTER"). This acquisition, which occurred in June 2013, resulted
in $421,598 (included in GrowLife Hydroponics, Inc. in the table below) of general and administrative expense in the
three month period ended March 31, 2014, while no such expense was included in the same three month period in
fiscal year 2013.

         Another factor in the increase in general and administrative expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2014
was the $274,701 of increased general and administrative expense at GrowLife, Inc., the parent company. This
increase was primarily due to (1) a $165,126 increase in wages and related taxes, (2) a $33,548 increase in consulting
and professional fees, (3) a $29,258 increase in travel related expenses, and (4) a $20,274 increase in rent expense.
The significant increase in wages and related taxes was due (1) to increased headcount at GrowLife, Inc. (four (4)
employees earning base salaries of at least $150,000 per year were on GrowLife, Inc.’s payroll at one time or another
during the three month period ended March 31, 2014 who were not on GrowLife, Inc.’s payroll at any time during the
same three month period in fiscal 2013), and (2) the fact that Sterling Scott, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer,
was paid a salary during the three months ended March 31, 2014 while receiving no salary during the same three
month period in fiscal year 2013.

The following is a summary comparison of general and administrative expenses for the three month periods ended
March 31, 2014 and 2013:

Three Months Ended
March 31,
2014

March 31,
2013

Year-to-Year
Change

GrowLife, Inc. $548,114 $273,413 $ 274,701
GrowLife Hydroponics, Inc. 459,674 51,955 407,719
Greners.com 110,093 124,226 (14,133 )
Phototron, Inc. & SG Technologies, Inc. 72,007 107,399 (35,392 )

$1,189,888 $556,993 $ 632,895

Non-cash general and administrative expenses for the three month period ended March 31, 2014 totaled $1,645,000,
with $1,160,000 related to common stock issued to the Company’s four (4) independent Board Directors per an August
2012 Board grant, $475,000 related to shares issued to the Company’s investor/public relations firm per a November
2013 agreement, and $10,000 related to shares issued to a third party consultant (see “NOTE 20 – STOCKHOLDERS’
DEFICIT”). During the same three month period in fiscal year 2013, non-cash general and administrative expenses
totaled $179,125, which consisted of $137,458 related to shares issued to employees of the Company, $20,000 related
to shares issued to a third party consultant, $11,667 related to shares issued in connection with the Company’s
“cannabis.org” website, and $10,000 related to shares issued to the Company’s two (2) independent Board Directors per
an August 2012 Board grant.
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For the three month period ended March 31, 2014, the Company recorded non-cash stock option expense in the
amount of $151,701 in relation to the expensing of options granted in November 2013 to Sterling Scott, the Company’s
Chief Executive Officer, John Genesi, the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, and Rob Hunt, the President of
GrowLife Hydroponics, Inc. and a Director of the Company (see “NOTE 20 – STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT”). These
stock option grants were recorded in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) ASC Topic 718,
“Compensation – Stock Compensation”. The Company measured, and recorded, the fair value of the option grant as of
the date of grant and is amortizing the computed value of the option grant over the related vesting period. There was
no stock option expense for the same three month period in fiscal year 2013.

The following is a brief analysis of select general and administrative expenses:

Wages and related taxes totaled $556,534 in the three month period ended March 31, 2014 as compared to $126,878.
The $429,656 increase is primarily due to (1) the $256,922 of wages and related taxes associated with the Rocky
Mountain Hydroponics, LLC and Evergreen Garden Center, LLC (“RMH/EGC”) stores that the Company acquired in
June 2013 (see “NOTE 3 PURCHASE – ROCKY MOUNTAIN HYDROPONICS and EVERGREEN GARDEN
CENTER"), and (2) the $165,126 increase in wages and related taxes incurred by GrowLife, Inc. As previously stated,
the three month period ended March 31, 2013 does not include any expenses related to RMH/EGC as that acquisition
occurred in June 2013. Also, as previously stated, the increase in wages and related taxes incurred by GrowLife, Inc.
was due (1) to increased headcount at GrowLife, Inc. (four (4) employees earning base salaries of at least $150,000
per year were on GrowLife’s payroll at one time or another during the three month period ended March 31, 2014 who
were not on GrowLife’s payroll at any time during the same three month period in fiscal 2013), and (2) the fact that
Sterling Scott, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, was paid a salary during the three months ended March 31,
2014 while receiving no salary during the same three month period in fiscal year 2013.

Rents, repairs, and security totaled $125,893 during the three month period ended March 31, 2014, which represents
an increase of $85,671 as compared to the $40,222 incurred during the same three month period in fiscal year 2013.
Rents, repairs, and security related to the RMH/EGC stores acquired in June 2013 accounted for $70,370 of the
increase while rent expense incurred by GrowLife, Inc. accounted for an additional $20,274 of the increase. These
increases were partially offset by the $6,516 decrease in rent expense incurred by Greners during the three month
period ended March 31, 2014.

Legal expenses totaled $61,639 during the three month period ended March 31, 2014 as compared to $24,619 for the
same three month period in fiscal year 2013. The increase in legal fees is primarily attributable to the Company’s
special shareholder meeting (see “NOTE 7 – SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS”), its dealings with CANX
USA, LLC (see “NOTE 4 – JOINT VENTURE AGREEMENT WITH CANX USA, LLC”), and its dealings with Wise
Phoenix, LLC and AJOA Holdings, LLC (see “NOTE 5 – INTEREST PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH WISE
PHOENIX, LLC AND AJOA HOLDINGS, LLC”).

Consulting and professional fees totaled $80,509 during the three month period ended March 31, 2014, which
represents an increase of $30,027 as compared to the $50,482 incurred during the three month period ended March 31,
2013. The increase was due primarily to the $33,696 paid to a third party consultant to provide employee recruiting
services to the Company during the three month period ended March 31, 2014.

Travel and related expenses were $53,768 during the three month period ended March 31, 2014, which represents an
increase of $47,091 as compared to the $6,677 incurred during the three month period ended March 31, 2013. The
increase is due primarily to the Company’s management team traveling among its various offices and stores.
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Health insurance expenses were $24,215 during the three month period ended March 31, 2014, while the Company
incurred zero health insurance expense during the three month period ended March 31, 2013. The increase is due to
the Company implementing a Group Health Insurance Plan for its employees during the three month period ended
March 31, 2014.

Accounting and audit fees during the three month period ended March 31, 2014 were $36,585 as compared to $51,985
during the same three month period in fiscal year 2013. The decrease is primarily due to the fact that the Company
retained a third party consultant to provide accounting/audit support during the three month period ended March 31,
2013. This consultant was paid $15,000 during the three month period ended March 31, 2013.

Advertising expense during the three month period ended March 31, 2014 was $45,573, while advertising expense in
the same period during fiscal year 2013 was $54,698. The Company incurred advertising expense of $11,410 in
relation to its RMH/EGC stores during the three month period ended March 31, 2014 while incurring no such expense
during the same three month period in fiscal year 2013. Advertising expense at Greners was $9,331 during the three
month period ended March 31, 2014 as compared to $22,860 expense during the same three month period in fiscal
year 2013.

During the three month period ended March 31, 2014, the Company incurred expenses of $5,149 in relation to new
business development/research and development. These expenses related entirely to the Company’s “cannabis.org”
website. During the same three month period in fiscal year 2013, the Company incurred $49,664 of new business
development/research and development expense. The $49,664 was related to GrowLife Productions, Inc. ($25,010),
“cannabis.org” ($10,000), and other miscellaneous projects/products ($14,654).

The Company recorded investor relations/public relations expense of $513,568 during the three month period ended
March 31, 2014 as compared to $23,185 during the same period in fiscal year 2013. The increase was due primarily to
the issuance of 1,250,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to Integrity Media, Inc. (see “NOTE 20 –
STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT”) in relation to a services agreement signed in November 2013. The 1,250,000 shares
were valued at $0.38 per share (the value of the Company’s common stock on the date of issuance) and $475,000 in the
aggregate.

During the three month period ended March 31, 2014, the Company issued 500,000 shares of its common stock,
2,000,000 shares in the aggregate, to each of its four (4) independent Board members (see “NOTE 20 –
STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT”). The shares were issued in relation to an August 2012 Board grant that valued the
shares at $0.02 per share at the time of grant, which represented the value of the Company’s common stock at the time
of grant. At March 31, 2014, the date the shares were issued, the Company valued the 2,000,000 shares at $0.58 per
share rather than $0.02 per share due to the age of the original Board grant, which the Company’s Board of Directors
viewed as outdated and in need of review. Accordingly, the Company recorded a $1,160,000 non-cash “shares issued
for services rendered” expense. On April 25, 2014, the four (4) independent Board Directors entered into four (4)
separate Restricted Stock Cancellation Agreements that effectively cancelled the issuance of the 500,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock that each received as compensation for Board service for the three month period ended
March 31, 2014 and returned their shares to the Company (see “NOTE 23 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS”).
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Other Expenses

During the three month period ended March 31, 2014, the Company incurred net other expenses totaling $35,307,238
versus net other expenses of $695,970 during the same period in fiscal year 2013. The $35,307,238 was comprised of
$34,507,607 of non-cash “change in fair value of derivative” expense (see “NOTE 13 – DERIVATIVE LIABILITY”),
$758,348 of non-cash interest expense related to the amortization of the debt discount associated with the Company’s
convertible notes payable, and $41,500 of accrued and unpaid interest expense related to the Company’s notes payable.
These expenses were partially offset by $217 of interest income.

The $695,970 of net other expenses incurred during the three month period ended March 31, 2013 consisted of
$495,038 of non-cash interest expense related to the amortization of the debt discount associated with the Company’s
convertible notes payable, $169,753 of non-cash “change in fair value of derivative” expense, $28,429 of accrued and
unpaid interest expense related to the Company’s notes payable, and $2,750 of non-cash “loss on extinguishment of debt”
related to the Company’s note payable issued to the former owners of Greners.

Note that $35,265,955, or 99%, of the $35,307,238 of net other expenses incurred during the three month period
ended March 31, 2014 is non-cash, which means it does not have an adverse effect on the Company’s cash flows.

Loss

The net loss for the three month period ended March 31, 2014 was $37,773,949 with the same period in fiscal 2013
incurring a net loss of $1,182,962. As noted above in “Other Expenses”, a significant portion of the Company’s net loss
for the three month periods ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 is related to non-cash expenses. The following is a brief
summary of the non-cash expenses incurred by the Company during the three month periods ended March 31, 2014
and 2013:

Three Months Ended
March 31,
2014

March 31,
2013

Net loss - GAAP basis $(37,773,949) $(1,182,962)
Less non-cash expenses:
   Non cash interest expense 799,331 521,220
   Change in fair value of derivative 34,507,607 169,753
   Gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt - 2,750
   Amortization of intangible assets 26,637 27,249
   Depreciation of plant & equipment 9,831 2,843
   Stock option expense 151,701 -
   Services rendered for common stock 1,645,000 179,125
Total non-cash expenses 37,140,107 902,940

Net loss excluding non-cash items - Non-GAAP basis $(633,842 ) $(280,022 )
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of March 31, 2014, the Company had a working capital deficiency of $27,625,635 as compared to a working
capital deficiency of $7,244,940 at December 31, 2013. Excluding the Company’s derivative liability, the Company
had working capital of $802,939 as of March 31, 2014 and $2,079,060 as of December 31, 2013. The Company has
relied, and will continue to rely, on funds generated through operations, through loans, and through the selling of
shares of our common stock to fund our operations.

During the three month period ended March 31, 2014, the Company used $1,129,770 of cash to fund its operating
activities as compared to $318,214 used to fund operations during the same three month period in fiscal year 2013.

The Company used $3,925 of cash to make leasehold improvements on one of its stores during the three month period
ended March 31, 2014 while using zero during the same three month period in fiscal year 2013.

During the three month period ended March 31, 2014, the Company generated net proceeds of $44,673 through
financing activities, all of which related to the exercising of stock options to purchase 2,351,187 shares of the
Company’s common stock at $0.019 per share. During the same three month period in fiscal year 2013, the Company
generated net proceeds of $528,252 through financing activities, of which $534,760 was generated via the sale of
15,278,861 shares of the Company’s common stock at a per share price of $0.035 in relation to a private placement that
was closed as of December 31, 2013, $156,000 was generated via the issuance of a 10% convertible note payable that
was fully converted into shares of the Company’s common stock as of March 31, 2013, $25,000 was generated via the
issuance of a note payable to a related party, and $9,000 was generated via the exercising of stock options to purchase
470,237 shares of the Company’s common stock at $0.019 per share. These cash proceeds were partially offset by
$196,508 of cash used to repay, in full, three (3) notes payable and accrued and unpaid interest.

Shortly after the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) suspended trading of the Company’s securities (see
“NOTE 23 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS”), one of the Company’s primary suppliers rescinded the Company’s credit terms
and required the Company to pay cash for its product purchases while also paying down the Company’s outstanding
balance with this supplier.

Unless our operations generate significant revenues and cash flows from operating activities, our continued operations
will depend on whether we are able to raise additional funds through various potential sources, such as equity and debt
financing, other collaborative agreements and strategic alliances. Our management is actively engaged in seeking
additional capital to fund our operations in the short to medium term.  We also intend to obtain, where appropriate,
increases of the amounts available to us under existing revolving promissory notes. Such additional funds may not
become available on acceptable terms and there can be no assurance that any additional funding that we do obtain will
be sufficient to meet our needs in the long term.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Not Applicable.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
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We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed
in our reports filed or submitted under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and that
such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer, who
serves as our principal executive officer and our Chief Financial officer, who serves as our principal financial and
accounting officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure as defined in Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act.
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As of March 31, 2014 our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures. Based on that evaluation, our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that as of March 31, 2014, our disclosure controls
and procedures were not effective due to the limited size of our staff and budget. The following weaknesses/areas of
concern were uncovered by our evaluation:

•  The lack of a centralized Accounting/Finance department operating from the same location as the Company’s senior
management

•  The lack of sufficiently trained and qualified Accounting/Finance staff
•  The lack of an offsite backup for the Company’s critical computerized data
•  The lack of a detailed, and written, set of company policies and procedures

•  Our information systems lack sufficient controls limiting access to key applications and data
•  Our inventory system lacks standardized product descriptions and effective controls to ensure the accuracy,
valuation, and timeliness of the financial accounting process around inventory, including a lack of accuracy and
basis for valuation resulting in adjustments to the amount of cost of revenues and the carrying amount of inventory.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting and Remediation of the Material Weaknesses

During the three-month period ended March 31, 2014, no changes to the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting were identified that materially affected, or were reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control
over financial reporting.

The Company is investing in efforts to improve the control environment and intends to commit resources to the
continuous improvement of the design, implementation, documentation, testing, and monitoring of our internal
controls. The Company has retained temporary Accounting/Finance personnel to assist in managing the Company’s
financial activities and the Company is also working to implement a new Accounting and Point-of-Sale (POS)
software system.

Remediation Plans

Management, in coordination with the input, oversight and support of our Board of Directors, intends to strengthen
our internal control over financial reporting and to address the material weaknesses described above. In addition to
improving the effectiveness and compliance with key controls, our remediation efforts will involve ongoing business
and accounting process improvements and the implementation of key system enhancements. The process and system
enhancements will be generally designed to simplify and standardize business practices and to improve timeliness and
access to associated accounting data through increased systems automation, appropriate limitations around IT access,
as well as timely testing of controls throughout the fiscal year. While we expect some remedial actions to be
essentially implemented by the end of fiscal 2014, some may not be in place for a sufficient period of time to help us
certify that material weaknesses have been fully remediated as of the end of the three-month period ended March 31,
2014. We will continue to develop our remediation plans and implement additional measures during the remainder of
fiscal year 2014.
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On April 30, 2014, the Company announced an initial component of its GrowLife 2.0 go-forward plan (see “NOTE 23–
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS”) with the creation of stronger governance policies at the Board level, the restructuring of
Board compensation, and the creation of guiding principles for the long-term growth of the company. A new
compensation plan for independent Directors on the Company’s Board has been proposed to replace the stock award
plan originally established in August 2012. The initial step in the implementation of the proposed compensation plan
is the agreement by all four independent directors of the Company to cancel their respective 500,000 share stock
grants for Q1 2014 issued pursuant to the August 2012 plan. The proposed plan shifts compensation away from
historical stock awards, and moves it toward incenting/rewarding independent Directors for overseeing the long-term
growth and expansion of the company. Director compensation will become more equitable and in-line with the
company's performance. Also fundamental is stronger business acumen shared throughout the company, and
compliance policies that ensure the Company’s business practices and investment strategies are in full compliance with
regulatory requirements and market dynamics. To provide oversight and clear direction, the Company’s Board of
Directors has established four essential committees:

•  Audit Committee to provide greater oversight on all compliance matters;
•  Compensation Committee to review compensation programs, specifically around stock incentive plans;

•  Nominating Committee to identify and screen additional board members who are committed to the long-term
growth of the company;

•  Mergers and Acquisitions Committee to guide purchasing and investments by the company

Inherent Limitation on the Effectiveness of Internal Controls

The effectiveness of any system of internal control over financial reporting is subject to inherent limitations, including
the exercise of judgment in designing, implementing, operating, and evaluating the controls and procedures, and the
inability to eliminate misconduct completely. Accordingly, any system of internal control over financial reporting can
only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurances. In addition, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. We intend to continue to monitor and upgrade
our internal controls as necessary or appropriate for our business, but cannot assure you that such improvements will
be sufficient to provide us with effective internal control over financial reporting.

- 56 -

Edgar Filing: GROWLIFE, INC. - Form 10-Q

77



PART II
OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1.  Legal Proceedings.

On March 20, 2014, Wise Phoenix, LLC (“WP”) and AJOA Holdings, LLC (“AJOA”), collectively referred to as the
“Sellers,” and R.X.N.B., Inc., a Nevada Corporation (“RXNB”) initiated a lawsuit against the Company and OGI, the
Company’s Joint Venture, in Clark County, Nevada in its Business Court division in regards to a Sellers Interest
Purchase Agreement (“RXNB Agreement”) with the Company and OGI.  The Sellers and RXNB claim that the
Company must effect registration of Company shares issuable to Seller in connection with the RXNB Agreement
since it had complied with the provisions set forth in the RXNB Agreement and delivered documents and instruments
to the Company.  The Company contends that the Sellers and RXNB have not met the requirements established by the
RXNB Agreement and therefore the Company is not obligated to register or issue the shares (see “NOTE 5
– INTEREST PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH WISE PHOENIX, LLC AND AJOA HOLDINGS, LLC”).

On March 24, 2014, Sellers, RXNB, OGI and the Company agreed to extend the closing date of the RXNB
Agreement to April 4, 2014. Additionally, Sellers and RXNB agreed to withdraw their lawsuit against the Company
and OGI without prejudice.

On April 10, 2014, the Company received notice from both R.X.N.B., Inc. and CEN Biotech, Inc. that both companies
were rescinding and/or voiding their respective Interest Purchase Agreements with the Company (see “NOTE 23 –
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS”). The notification indicated that both R.X.N.B., Inc. and CEN Biotech, Inc. were rescinding
and/or voiding their respective agreements when each company became aware that the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission suspended the Company’s trading in securities due to potential issues of accuracy and adequacy of
information in the marketplace.

In the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, the Company disclosed a pending legal action involving Wise
Phoenix, LLC (“WP”) and AJOA Holdings, LLC (“AJOA”), collectively referred to as the “Sellers,” and R.X.N.B., Inc., a
Nevada Corporation (“RXNB”).  The Sellers and RXNB had filed a lawsuit against the Company on March 20, 2014 in
Clark County, Nevada and subsequently withdrew the lawsuit on March 24, 2014 without prejudice.

On April 18, 2014, a class action lawsuit (the "Complaint") was filed against the Company in the United States
District Court, Central District of California (Randy Romero v. Growlife, Inc. et al; Case No.: CV14-03015). The
Complaint alleges two claims: (1) Violation of  Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
(the "Act") against the Company and the individual executive officers and board of directors (collectively, the
"Board"); and (2) Violation of Section 20(a) of the Act against the members of the Board.

On May 2, 2014, the Company was served with the Complaint. The Complaint alleges (among other things) that the
Company and the Board published certain documents and filings that were inaccurate and/or inadequate, causing
Company securities to be traded at an inflated price. The Complaint further alleges that the Company's and Board's
actions caused the members in the class action to suffer damages in an amount to be proven at trial. The Complaint
also claims that members of the Board are in violation of Section 20(a) of the Act due to their position and
relationship with the Company and their alleged involvement with the Company's violation of Section 10(b) and Rule
10b-5 of the Act.

It is possible that additional class action lawsuits may be filed and served against the Company arising out of or
related to similar events as the Complaint.
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The Company has from time to time been involved in disputes and proceedings arising in the ordinary course of
business. In addition, as a public company, we are also potentially susceptible to litigation, such as claims asserting
violations of securities laws. Any such claims, with or without merit, if not resolved, could be time-consuming and
result in costly litigation. There can be no assurance that an adverse result in any future proceeding would not have a
potentially material adverse affect on our business, results of operations or financial condition.

Item 1A.  Risk Factors.

Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the following risk factors
and all other information contained in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q and the annual report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended 2013 before purchasing shares of our common stock. If any of the following risks occur, our
business, consolidated financial condition and/or results of operations could be materially and adversely affected. In
that case, the trading price of our common stock could decline, and you may lose some or all of your investment.

Risks Related to Our Business

The Company has been involved in legal proceedings and the outcome of which impacts the management of the
Company and could adversely affect the Company’s financial condition or results of operation. We have been involved
in legal proceedings as discussed in Item 1, Legal Proceedings.  

The Company is currently in default on its 7% convertible notes payable. Per the terms of these notes (see “NOTE 18 -
7% CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE”), upon default the Holder(s) may, at their sole discretion, accelerate these
7% convertible notes payable. Upon any such acceleration of these 7% convertible notes, the Company shall be
obligated to pay an amount equal to the greater of (i) one hundred and twenty percent (120%) of the outstanding
principal of these 7% convertible notes (plus all accrued but unpaid interest), and (ii) the product of (a) the highest
closing price for the Company’s common stock for the five (5) days on which the Primary Market is open for business
immediately preceding such acceleration and (b) a fraction, the numerator of which is the outstanding principal of this
7% convertible, and the denominator of which is the applicable conversion price as of the date of determination. As of
March 31, 2014, the outstanding principal on these 7% convertible notes was $1,250,000 with accrued and unpaid
interest totaling $27,807. Should the Holder(s) choose to accelerate these 7% convertible notes, the Company would
be required to pay the Holders $1,500,000 of principal and all accrued and unpaid interest. An acceleration of these
7% convertible notes would have a significant adverse affect on the Company’s cash flows and should the Company be
unsuccessful in negotiating an extension or other modification, it may have to restructure its operations, divest all or a
portion of its business, or file for bankruptcy.

Closing of Bank Accounts. On March 31, 2014, the Company received notice from one of its primary banking
institutions that its bank accounts with that institution were going to be closed. The Company immediately transferred
all of its funds held at that bank to its other primary banking institution. On April 7, 2014, the banking institution that
the Company had transferred its funds into upon receiving notice on March 31, 2014, informed the Company that it
would be closing the Company’s bank accounts effective May 7, 2014. Neither of these banking institutions provided
the Company with an explanation as to why they were closing the Company’s bank accounts. Since receiving this
second notice of closure on April 7, 2014, the Company has secured bank accounts for each of its six (6) retail
hydroponics stores and for Greners. As of the time of this filing the Company is still working to secure bank accounts
for both GrowLife, Inc. and Phototron, Inc. At this time, the Company cannot be certain that it will be successful in its
search to find bank accounts for GrowLife, Inc. and/or Phototron, Inc., nor can it be certain that the bank accounts that
it recently secured will not be closed by the respective banking institutions. These factors could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and/or results of operations.
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Federal regulation and enforcement may adversely affect the implementation of medical marijuana laws and
regulations may negatively impact our revenues and profits. Currently, there are twenty states plus the District of
Columbia that have laws and/or regulation that recognize in one form or another legitimate medical uses for cannabis
and consumer use of cannabis in connection with medical treatment. Many other states are considering legislation to
similar effect. As of the date of this writing, the policy and regulations of the Federal government and its agencies is
that cannabis has no medical benefit and a range of activities including cultivation and use of cannabis for personal
use is prohibited on the basis of federal law and may or may not be permitted on the basis of state law. Active
enforcement of the current federal regulatory position on cannabis on a regional or national basis may directly and
adversely affect the willingness of customers of GrowLife to invest in or buy products from GrowLife that may be
used in connection with cannabis. Active enforcement of the current federal regulatory position on cannabis may thus
indirectly and adversely affect revenues and profits of the GrowLife companies.

We may be unable to continue as a going concern if we do not successfully raise additional capital. If we are unable to
successfully raise the capital we need we may need to reduce the scope of our business to fully satisfy our future
short-term liquidity requirements. If we cannot raise additional capital or reduce the scope of our business, we may be
otherwise unable to achieve our goals or continue our operations. As discussed in Note 2 in the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, we have incurred losses from operations in the prior two years and have a lack of
liquidity. These factors raise substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. In addition, our
auditors have included in their report on our audited consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2013 and 2012
an explanatory paragraph expressing substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. While we
believe that we will be able to raise the capital we need to continue our operations, there can be no assurances that we
will be successful in these efforts or will be able to resolve our liquidity issues or eliminate our operating losses.

We will continue to need additional financing to carry out our business plan. Such funds may not be available to us,
which lack of availability could reduce our operating income, product development activities and future business
prospects. We need thereafter to obtain significant additional funding to successfully continue our business. We
currently have no committed sources of additional capital, and there can be no assurance that any financing
arrangements will be available in amounts or on terms acceptable to us, if at all. Furthermore, the sale of additional
equity or convertible debt securities may result in additional dilution to existing stockholders. If adequate additional
funds are not available, we may be required to delay, reduce the scope of or eliminate material parts of the
implementation of our business strategy. This limitation would impede our growth and could result in a contraction of
our operations, which would reduce our operating income, product development activities and future business
prospects.
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We have a history of operating losses and there can be no assurance that we can again achieve or maintain
profitability. We did not achieve an operating profit for the year ended December 31, 2013. We have a history of
operating losses and may not again achieve or maintain profitability. We cannot guarantee that we will become
profitable. Even if we again achieve profitability, given the competitive and evolving nature of the industry in which
we operate, we may not be able to sustain or increase profitability and our failure to do so would adversely affect our
business, including our ability to raise additional funds.

Our inability to effectively manage our growth could harm our business and materially and adversely affect our
operating results and financial condition. Our strategy envisions growing our business. We plan to expand our
product, sales, administrative and marketing organizations. Any growth in or expansion of our business is likely to
continue to place a strain on our management and administrative resources, infrastructure and systems. As with other
growing businesses, we expect that we will need to further refine and expand our business development capabilities,
our systems and processes and our access to financing sources. We also will need to hire, train, supervise and manage
new employees. These processes are time consuming and expensive, will increase management responsibilities and
will divert management attention. We cannot assure you that we will be able to:

● expand our products effectively or efficiently or in a timely manner;
● allocate our human resources optimally;
● meet our capital needs;
● identify and hire qualified employees or retain valued employees; or
● incorporate effectively the components of any business or product line that we

may acquire in our effort to achieve growth.

Our inability or failure to manage our growth and expansion effectively could harm our business and materially and
adversely affect our operating results and financial condition.

Our operating results may fluctuate significantly based on customer acceptance of our products. As a result,
period-to-period comparisons of our results of operations are unlikely to provide a good indication of our future
performance. Management expects that we will experience substantial variations in our net sales and operating results
from quarter to quarter due to customer acceptance of our products. If customers don’t accept our products, our sales
and revenues will decline, resulting in a reduction in our operating income.

Customer interest for our products could also be impacted by the timing of our introduction of new products. If our
competitors introduce new products around the same time that we issue new products, and if such competing products
are superior to our own, customers’ desire for our products could decrease, resulting in a decrease in our sales and
revenues. To the extent that we introduce new products and customers decide not to migrate to our new products from
our older products, our revenues could be negatively impacted due to the loss of revenue from those customers. In the
event that our newer products do not sell as well as our older products, we could also experience a reduction in our
revenues and operating income.

As a result of fluctuations in our revenue and operating expenses that may occur, management believes that
period-to-period comparisons of our results of operations are unlikely to provide a good indication of our future
performance.
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If we do not successfully generate additional products and services, or if such products and services are developed but
not successfully commercialized, we could lose revenue opportunities. Our future success depends, in part, on our
ability to expand our product and service offerings. To that end we have engaged in the process of identifying new
product opportunities to provide additional products and related services to our customers. The process of identifying
and commercializing new products is complex and uncertain, and if we fail to accurately predict customers’ changing
needs and emerging technological trends our business could be harmed. We may have to commit significant resources
to commercializing new products before knowing whether our investments will result in products the market will
accept. Furthermore, we may not execute successfully on commercializing those products because of errors in product
planning or timing, technical hurdles that we fail to overcome in a timely fashion, or a lack of appropriate resources.
This could result in competitors providing those solutions before we do and a reduction in net sales and earnings.

The success of new products depends on several factors, including proper new product definition, timely completion
and introduction of these products, differentiation of new products from those of our competitors, and market
acceptance of these products. There can be no assurance that we will successfully identify new product opportunities,
develop and bring new products to market in a timely manner, or achieve market acceptance of our products or that
products and technologies developed by others will not render our products or technologies obsolete or
noncompetitive.

Our future success depends on our ability to grow and expand our customer base.  Our failure to achieve such growth
or expansion could materially harm our business. To date, our revenue growth has been derived primarily from the
sale of our products. Our success and the planned growth and expansion of our business depend on us achieving
greater and broader acceptance of our products and expanding our customer base. There can be no assurance that
customers will purchase our products or that we will continue to expand our customer base. If we are unable to
effectively market or expand our product offerings, we will be unable to grow and expand our business or implement
our business strategy. This could materially impair our ability to increase sales and revenue and materially and
adversely affect our margins, which could harm our business and cause our stock price to decline.

If we incur substantial liability from litigation, complaints, or enforcement actions resulting from misconduct by our
distributors, our financial condition could suffer. We will require that our distributors comply with applicable law and
with our policies and procedures. Although we will use various means to address misconduct by our distributors,
including maintaining these policies and procedures to govern the conduct of our distributors and conducting training
seminars, it will still be difficult to detect and correct all instances of misconduct. Violations of applicable law or our
policies and procedures by our distributors could lead to litigation, formal or informal complaints, enforcement
actions, and inquiries by various federal, state, or foreign regulatory authorities against us and/or our distributors.
Litigation, complaints, and enforcement actions involving us and our distributors could consume considerable
amounts of financial and other corporate resources, which could have a negative impact on our sales, revenue,
profitability and growth prospects. As we are currently in the process of implementing our direct sales distributor
program, we have not been, and are not currently, subject to any material litigation, complaint or enforcement action
regarding distributor misconduct by any federal, state or foreign regulatory authority.

Our future manufacturers could fail to fulfill our orders for products, which would disrupt our business, increase our
costs, harm our reputation and potentially cause us to lose our market. We may depend on contract manufacturers in
the future to produce our products. These manufacturers could fail to produce products to our specifications or in a
workmanlike manner and may not deliver the units on a timely basis. Our manufacturers may also have to obtain
inventories of the necessary parts and tools for production. Any change in manufacturers to resolve production issues
could disrupt our ability to fulfill orders. Any change in manufacturers to resolve production issues could also disrupt
our business due to delays in finding new manufacturers, providing specifications and testing initial production. Such
disruptions in our business and/or delays in fulfilling orders would harm our reputation and would potentially cause us
to lose our market.
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Our inability to effectively protect our intellectual property would adversely affect our ability to compete effectively,
our revenue, our financial condition and our results of operations. We may be unable to obtain intellectual property
rights to effectively protect our technology. Our ability to compete effectively may be affected by the nature and
breadth of our intellectual property rights. While we intend to defend against any threats to our intellectual property
rights, there can be no assurance that any such actions will adequately protect our interests. If we are unable to secure
intellectual property rights to effectively protect our technology, our revenue and earnings, financial condition, and/or
results of operations would be adversely affected.

We may also rely on nondisclosure and non-competition agreements to protect portions of our technology. There can
be no assurance that these agreements will not be breached, that we will have adequate remedies for any breach, that
third parties will not otherwise gain access to our trade secrets or proprietary knowledge, or that third parties will not
independently develop the technology.

We do not warrant any opinion as to non-infringement of any patent, trademark, or copyright by us or any of our
affiliates, providers, or distributors. Nor do we warrant any opinion as to invalidity of any third-party patent or
unpatentability of any third-party pending patent application.

Intellectual property litigation would be costly and could adversely impact our business operations. We may have to
take legal action in the future to protect our technology or to assert our intellectual property rights against others. Any
legal action could be costly and time consuming to us, and no assurances can be made that any action will be
successful. The invalidation of any intellectual property rights that we may own, or an unsuccessful outcome in
lawsuits to protect our technology, could have a material adverse affect on our business, financial position, and/or
results of operations.

Intellectual property litigation can be expensive, complex, and protracted. Because of such complexity, and the
vagaries of the jury system, intellectual property litigation may result in significant damage awards and/or injunctions
that could prevent the manufacture, use, distribution, importation, exportation, and sale of products or require us to
pay significant royalties in order to continue to manufacture, use, distribute, import, export, or sell products.
Furthermore, in the event that our right to license or to market our technology is successfully challenged, and if we
fail to obtain a required license or are unable to design around a patent held by a third party, our business, financial
condition, and/or results of operations could be materially adversely affected.

Our industry is highly competitive and we have less capital and resources than many of our competitors, which may
give them an advantage in developing and marketing products similar to ours or make our products obsolete. We are
involved in a highly competitive industry where we may compete with numerous other companies who offer
alternative methods or approaches, who may have far greater resources, more experience, and personnel perhaps more
qualified than we do. Such resources may give our competitors an advantage in developing and marketing products
similar to ours or products that make our products obsolete. There can be no assurance that we will be able to
successfully compete against these other entities.
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We will be required to attract and retain top quality talent to compete in the marketplace. We believe our future
growth and success will depend in part on our ability to attract and retain highly skilled managerial, product
development, sales and marketing, and finance personnel. There can be no assurance of success in attracting and
retaining such personnel. Shortages in qualified personnel could limit our ability to increase sales of existing products
and services and launch new product and service offerings.

Our forecasts are highly speculative in nature and we cannot predict results with a high degree of accuracy. Any
financial projections, especially those based on ventures with minimal operating history, are inherently subject to a
high degree of uncertainty, and their ultimate achievement depends on the timing and occurrence of a complex series
of future events, both internal and external to the enterprise. There can be no assurance that potential revenues or
expenses we project will, in fact, be received or incurred.

We will be subject to evolving and expensive corporate governance regulations and requirements. Our failure to
adequately adhere to these requirements or the failure or circumvention of our controls and procedures could seriously
harm our business. As a publicly traded company, we are subject to various federal, state and other rules and
regulations, including applicable requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Compliance with these evolving
regulations is costly and requires a significant diversion of management time and attention, particularly with regard to
our disclosure controls and procedures and our internal control over financial reporting. Our internal controls and
procedures may not be able to prevent errors or fraud in the future. Faulty judgments, simple errors or mistakes, or the
failure of our personnel to adhere to established controls and procedures, may make it difficult for us to ensure that the
objectives of the control system are met. A failure of our controls and procedures to detect other than inconsequential
errors or fraud could seriously harm our business and results of operations.

Our limited senior management team size may hamper our ability to effectively manage a publicly traded company
while developing our products and harm our business. Our management team has experience in the management of
publicly traded companies and complying with federal securities laws, including compliance with recently adopted
disclosure requirements on a timely basis. They realize it will take significant resources to meet these requirements
while simultaneously working on developing and protecting our intellectual property. Our management will be
required to design and implement appropriate programs and policies in responding to increased legal, regulatory
compliance and reporting requirements, and any failure to do so could lead to the imposition of fines and penalties and
harm our business.

We have limited insurance. We have limited directors’ and officers’ liability insurance and commercial liability
insurance policies. Any significant claims would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition
and results of operations.  
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Risks Related to our Common Stock

The limited trading market for our common stock results in limited liquidity for shares of our common stock and
significant volatility in our stock price. Active trading markets generally result in lower price volatility and more
efficient execution of buy and sell orders. The absence of an active trading market reduces the liquidity of our
common stock.

The market price of our stock is likely to be highly volatile because for some time there will likely be a thin trading
market for the stock, which causes trades of small blocks of stock to have a significant impact on our stock price. As a
result of the lack of trading activity, the quoted price for our common stock is not necessarily a reliable indicator of its
fair market value. Further, if we continue to cease to be quoted, holders of our common stock will continue to find it
more difficult to dispose of, or to obtain accurate quotations as to the market value of, our common stock, and the
market value of our common stock will likely decline.

Trading in our common stock will be subject to regulatory restrictions since our common stock is considered a “penny
stock.” Our common stock is currently, and in the near future will likely continue to be, considered a “penny stock.” The
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) has adopted rules that regulate broker-dealer practices in connection with
transactions in “penny stocks.” Penny stocks generally are equity securities with a price of less than $5.00 (other than
securities registered on certain national securities exchanges or quoted on the NASDAQ system, provided that current
price and volume information with respect to transactions in such securities is provided by the exchange or system).
The penny stock rules require a broker-dealer, prior to a transaction in a penny stock not otherwise exempt from those
rules, to deliver a standardized risk disclosure document prepared by the SEC, which specifies information about
penny stocks and the nature and significance of risks of the penny stock market. The broker-dealer also must provide
the customer with bid and offer quotations for the penny stock, the compensation of the broker-dealer and any
salesperson in the transaction, and monthly account statements indicating the market value of each penny stock held in
the customer’s account. In addition, the penny stock rules require that, prior to a transaction in a penny stock not
otherwise exempt from those rules, the broker-dealer must make a special written determination that the penny stock
is a suitable investment for the purchaser and receive the purchaser’s written agreement to the transaction. These
disclosure and other requirements may adversely affect the trading activity in the secondary market for our common
stock.
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We do not expect to pay dividends for the foreseeable future, and any return on investment may be limited to potential
future appreciation on the value of our common stock. While we declared and paid a dividend to holders of record of
our common stock as of February 28, 2011, we do not anticipate paying dividends in the foreseeable future and
currently intend to retain any future earnings to support the development and expansion of our business. Our payment
of any future dividends will be at the discretion of our board of directors after taking into account various factors,
including without limitation, our financial condition, operating results, cash needs, growth plans and the terms of any
credit agreements that we may be a party to at the time. To the extent we do not pay dividends, our stock may be less
valuable because a return on investment will only occur if and to the extent our stock price appreciates, which may
never occur. In addition, investors must rely on sales of their common stock after price appreciation as the only way to
realize their investment, and if the price of our stock does not appreciate, then there will be no return on investment.
Investors seeking cash dividends should not purchase our common stock.

Our officers, directors and principal stockholders can exert significant influence over us and may make decisions that
are not in the best interests of all stockholders. Our officers, directors and principal stockholders (greater than 5%
stockholders) collectively beneficially own approximately 17% of our common stock. As a result of such ownership
these stockholders will be able to affect the outcome of, or exert significant influence over, all matters requiring
stockholder approval, including the election and removal of directors and any change in control. In particular, this
concentration of ownership of our common stock could have the effect of delaying or preventing a change of control
of our company or otherwise discouraging or preventing a potential acquirer from attempting to obtain control of our
company. This, in turn, could have a negative affect on the market price of our common stock. It could also prevent
our stockholders from realizing a premium over the market prices for their shares of common stock. Moreover, the
interests of this concentration of ownership may not always coincide with our interests or the interests of other
stockholders, and accordingly, they could cause us to enter into transactions or agreements that we would not
otherwise consider.

Anti-takeover provisions may limit the ability of another party to acquire our company, which could cause our stock
price to decline. Our certificate of incorporation, as amended, our bylaws and Delaware law contain provisions that
could discourage, delay or prevent a third party from acquiring our company, even if doing so may be beneficial to
our stockholders. In addition, these provisions could limit the price investors would be willing to pay in the future for
shares of our common stock.

Anti-takeover provisions may limit the ability of another party to acquire our company, which could cause our stock
price to decline. Our certificate of incorporation, as amended, our bylaws and Delaware law contain provisions that
could discourage, delay or prevent a third party from acquiring our company, even if doing so may be beneficial to
our stockholders. In addition, these provisions could limit the price investors would be willing to pay in the future for
shares of our common stock.
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The market price of our common stock may be volatile. The market price of our common stock has been and is likely
in the future to be volatile. Our common stock price may fluctuate in response to factors such as: 

●Announcements by us regarding liquidity, legal proceedings, significant acquisitions,
equity investments and divestitures, strategic relationships, addition or loss of significant
customers and contracts, capital expenditure commitments, loan, note payable and
agreement defaults, loss of our subsidiaries and impairment of assets,

●Issuance of convertible or equity securities for general or merger and acquisition
purposes,

●Issuance or repayment of debt, accounts payable or convertible debt for general or
merger and acquisition purposes,

●Sale of a significant number of shares of our common stock by shareholders,

●General market and economic conditions,

●Quarterly variations in our operating results,

●Investor relation activities,

●Announcements of technological innovations,

●New product introductions by us or our competitors,

●Competitive activities, and

●Additions or departures of key personnel.

These broad market and industry factors may have a material adverse affect on the market price of our common stock,
regardless of our actual operating performance. These factors could have a material adverse affect on our business,
financial condition, and/or results of operations.

Item 2.  Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

On January 3, 2014, the Company issued 4,700,196 shares of its common stock to a Holder of its 6% Senior Secured
Convertible Notes Payable upon the conversion of $30,000 of principal and $2,901 of accrued and unpaid interest.
The conversion price was $0.007 per share, as per the terms of the note payable, and upon conversion the Company
had fully satisfied its obligations to this Holder.
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On January 31, 2014, the Company issued 12,562,518 shares of its common stock to Rob Hunt, a member of the
Company’s Board of Directors, President of GrowLife Hydroponics, Inc., a former owner of Rocky Mountain
Hydroponics, LLC and Evergreen Garden Center, LLC, and the last Holder of the Company’s 12% Senior Secured
Convertible Notes Payable. The shares were issued upon the conversion of $408,000 of principal and $31,688 of
accrued and unpaid interest at a per share conversion price of $0.035, as per the terms of the note payable, and upon
conversion Mr. Hunt’s note was satisfied in full.

On January 31, 2014, the Company issued 2,351,187 shares of its common stock for cash proceeds of $44,673. The
shares were issued upon the exercise of a stock option granted in fiscal year 2011, with the Holder entitled to purchase
2,351,187 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $0.019 per share.

On February 13, 2014, the Company issued 29,420 shares of its common stock to a third party consultant as payment
in full for services rendered. The shares were priced at $0.3399 per share, which was the average closing price of the
Company’s common stock during the ten (10) trading days prior to February 13, 2014, which was the date of the
agreement.

On February 16, 2014, the Company issued 1,250,000 shares of its common stock to Integrity Media, Inc. (“Integrity”)
at a per share price of $0.38 per share, which was the closing price of the Company's common stock on February 14,
2014. The shares were the second installment owed to Integrity per the terms of its November 16, 2013 agreement
with the Company. Upon the issuance of these shares, the Company owes Integrity an additional 1,500,000 shares of
its common stock.

On March 7, 2014, the Company issued 2,000,000 shares of its common stock to one (1) Holder of the Company’s 7%
convertible notes payable upon the conversion of $50,000 of principal at a per share conversion price of $0.025, which
was in accordance with the terms of the note payable.

On March 18, 2014, the Company issued 22,727,668 shares of its common stock to three (3) Holders of the Company’s
7% convertible notes payable upon the conversion of $550,000 of principal and $18,192 of accrued and unpaid
interest at a per share conversion price of $0.025, which was in accordance with the terms of the note payable. Upon
conversion the notes of these three Holders had been satisfied in full.

On March 20, 2014, the Holder of a stock option granted in fiscal year 2011 to purchase 4,500,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock at $0.23 per share exercised his option on a cashless basis. Per the terms of the Stock
Option Agreement, the net shares issued to the Holder were 2,775,000.

On March 31, 2014, the Company issued 500,000 shares to Alan Hammer, an independent Director of the Company,
as compensation for his Board service for the three month period ended March 31, 2014. The shares were issued per
the terms of an August 2012 Board grant that valued the shares at $0.02 per share, which represents the value of the
Company’s common stock on the date of grant. Upon the issuance of these shares on March 31, 2014, the Company
valued the shares at $0.58 per share, which was the closing price of the Company’s common stock on March 31, 2014.
The Company valued them at $0.58 per share rather than $0.02 per share due to the age of the original Board grant,
which the Company’s Board of Directors viewed as outdated and in need of review. On April 25, 2014, Mr. Hammer
entered into a Restricted Stock Cancellation Agreement with the Company that effectively cancelled the issuance of
the 500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock that he received as compensation for Board service for the three
month period ended March 31, 2014 and returned these shares to the Company (see “NOTE 23 – SUBSEQUENT
EVENTS”).
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On March 31, 2014, the Company issued 500,000 shares to Eric Shevin, an independent Director of the Company, as
compensation for his Board service for the three month period ended March 31, 2014. The shares were issued per the
terms of an August 2012 Board grant that valued the shares at $0.02 per share, which represents the value of the
Company’s common stock on the date of grant. Upon the issuance of these shares on March 31, 2014, the Company
valued the shares at $0.58 per share, which was the closing price of the Company’s common stock on March 31, 2014.
The Company valued them at $0.58 per share rather than $0.02 per share due to the age of the original Board grant,
which the Company’s Board of Directors viewed as outdated and in need of review. On April 25, 2014, Mr. Shevin
entered into a Restricted Stock Cancellation Agreement with the Company that effectively cancelled the issuance of
the 500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock that he received as compensation for Board service for the three
month period ended March 31, 2014 and returned these shares to the Company (see “NOTE 23 – SUBSEQUENT
EVENTS”).

On March 31, 2014, the Company issued 500,000 shares to Jeff Giarraputo, an independent Director of the Company,
as compensation for his Board service for the three month period ended March 31, 2014. The shares were issued per
the terms of an August 2012 Board grant that valued the shares at $0.02 per share, which represents the value of the
Company’s common stock on the date of grant. Upon the issuance of these shares on March 31, 2014, the Company
valued the shares at $0.58 per share, which was the closing price of the Company’s common stock on March 31, 2014.
The Company valued them at $0.58 per share rather than $0.02 per share due to the age of the original Board grant,
which the Company’s Board of Directors viewed as outdated and in need of review. On April 25, 2014, Mr. Giarraputo
entered into a Restricted Stock Cancellation Agreement with the Company that effectively cancelled the issuance of
the 500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock that he received as compensation for Board service for the three
month period ended March 31, 2014 and returned these shares to the Company (see “NOTE 23 – SUBSEQUENT
EVENTS”).

On March 31, 2014, the Company issued 500,000 shares to Anthony Ciabattoni, an independent Director of the
Company, as compensation for his Board service for the three month period ended March 31, 2014. The shares were
issued per the terms of an August 2012 Board grant that valued the shares at $0.02 per share, which represents the
value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant. Upon the issuance of these shares on March 31, 2014, the
Company valued the shares at $0.58 per share, which was the closing price of the Company’s common stock on March
31, 2014. The Company valued them at $0.58 per share rather than $0.02 per share due to the age of the original
Board grant, which the Company’s Board of Directors viewed as outdated and in need of review. Mr. Ciabattoni’s
shares have been issued to the Ciabattoni Living Trust, of which Mr. Ciabattoni is the Trustee. On April 25, 2014, Mr.
Ciabattoni entered into a Restricted Stock Cancellation Agreement with the Company that effectively cancelled the
issuance of the 500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock that he received as compensation for Board service for
the three month period ended March 31, 2014 and returned these shares to the Company (see “NOTE 23 –
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS”).

In connection with the above stock sales, we did not pay any underwriting discounts or commissions. None of the
sales of securities described or referred to above was registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the
“Securities Act”). We had or one of our affiliates had a prior business relationship with each of the purchasers, and no
general solicitation or advertising was used in connection with the sales. In making the sales without registration
under the Securities Act, we relied upon the exemption from registration contained in Section 4(2) of the Securities
Act.
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Item 6. Exhibits

Exhibit Index

Exhibit Number Description of Exhibit
31.1 Certificate of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the

Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

31.2 Certificate of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

32.1 Certificate of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) under the
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

32.2 Certificate of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) under the
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

101 XBRL information

* XBRL information is furnished and not filed or a part of a registration statement or prospectus for purposes of
Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, is deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and otherwise is not subject to liability under these sections.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

GROWLIFE, INC.

Date: May 15, 2014 By:  /s/ Sterling Scott
Sterling Scott
Chief Executive Officer

Date: May 15, 2014 By:  /s/ John Genesi
John Genesi
Chief Financial Officer
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